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FINANCIAL SECTION 





Thompson, Price, Scott. Adams & Co., P.A. 
4024 Oleander Drive Suite 3 
Wilmington, North Carolina 28403 
Telephone (910) 791-4872 
Fax (910) 395-4872 

(ndepe ndent Auditor's Report 

To the Board of Di rectors 
Mid- East Commission 
Washington, North Carolina 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, 
the bUSi ness-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of the Mid-East Commission as of and for the year then ended June 30, 
2013, and the re lated notes to the financial statements, which co llectively comprise 
Mid-East Commiss ion's basic fi nancial statements as listed in the tab le of contents. 

Managemen~s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America; this includes the design, implementation. and maintenance of 
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from mate rial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibil ity is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our 
audit We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurancp. rlbout whether the financial statements are frec from material 
misstatement 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts 
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 
the fin ancial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures 

Members 
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the entity's internal control. Accordingly we express no such opinion. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

Opinions 

[n our opinion, based on our audit, the financial statements referred to abuve present 
fairly, in at! material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental 
activities, business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of the Mid-East Commission as of June 3D, 2013, and the respective changes 
in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof and the respective 
budgetary comparison for the General Fund for the year then ended in accordance with 
accounting prinCiples generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Otlier Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
Management's Discussion and Analysis and the Other Postemployment Benefits' 
Schedules of Funding Progress and Employer Contributions be presented to supplement 
the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers 
it to be an essential part of financ ial reporting for placing the basic financial statements 
in an appropriate operational. economic, or historical con text. We have applied certain 
limited procedures to the required supplementary info rmation in accordance with 
auditing standards gene rally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted 
of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the information fo r consistency with management's responses to our 
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our 
audit of the basic financia l statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Supplementary and Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements 
that collectively comprise the basic financial statements of the Mid-East Commission. 
The combining and individual fund statements, budgetary schedules, other schedules as 
well as the accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal anrl St;)te Awards, as 
required by Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local 
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act 
are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic 
financial statements. 
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The combining and individual fund financial statements, budgetary schedules, other 
schedules and the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards are the 
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. 
Such info rma tion has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of 
the basic financial statements and certa in additional procedures, including comparing 
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records 
used to prepare the basic financial sta tements or to the basic financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America by us. In our opinion, based on our 
audit, the procedures performed as described above, the combining and individual fund 
financial statements, budgetary schedules, other schedules, and the Schedule of 
Expenditures of Federal and State Awards are fairly stated, in all material respects, in 
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

[n accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
October 24, 2013 on our consideration of the Mid-East Commission's internal control 
over financia l reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of the 
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting 
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal 
contro l over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an 
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Mid­
East Commission 's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co., P.A 
Wilmington, North Carolina 
October 24, 2013 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS 





Manage ment 'S DisClission and Analys is 

As management of the Mid-East Commission, we offer readers of the Mid-East Commission's financial 
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Commission for the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2013. We encourage readers to read the information presented here in conjunction with 
additional information that we have furnished in the Commission's financial statements, which follow this 
narrative. 

Fina ncia l Highlights 

• The assets of the Mid-Eac;;t C'.ommission exceeded its liabil ities at the close of the fiscal year by $835,338 
(net position) . 

• The government's total net position increased over the prior year by $69.390. 
• At the close of the current fiscal year, Mid-East Commission's governmental funds reported combined 

ending fund balances of $586,596, an decrease of$1 72,880 in comparison with the prior year . 

• At the end of Ihe current fiscal year, fund balance for the General Fund was $244,704. Th is is an increase 

of$ I,139 from the prior year. 

• Mid-East Commissions' total debt excl ud ing compensated absences consists of $1 ,581 ,736. 

Overv iew of the Financia l Sta tements 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to Mid-East Commission 's basic financial 

statements. The Commission's basic financial statements consist of three components: I) government-wide 

financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements (see Figure I). The 
basic financial statements present two di fferent views of the Comm ission through the use of govern ment-wide 

statements and fund financial statements. [n addition to the basic financial statements, th is report contains other 
supplementa l information that will enhance the reader's understanding of the financial condition of the Mid~East 
Commission. 

Req uircd COIllI)Onc llts of Annual Financial Report 

Figurc 1 

Management's Basic 

Discussion and Analysis Financial Statements 

I 

I I 
Government-wide Fund 

Financial Statements Financial Statements 

Su mmary Detail 
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Management Discussion and Analysis 
Mid-East Commission 

Bas ic Fina ncial Statements 

The first two statements (Exhibits I and 2) in the basIc financia l statements are the Government-wide Financial 

Statements_ They provide both short and long-term information about the Commission's financial status. 

The next statements (Exhibits 3 through (0) are Fund Financial Statements. These statements focus on the 

activities of the individual parts of the Commission's government. These statements provide more detail than 
the govern ment-wide statements. There are three parts to the Fund Financial Statements: I) rhe governmental 

Funds statement,,; 2) the hudgetary comparison c;tatements; and 3) the proprietary fund statements 

The next section of the basic financial statements is the notes. The notes to the financial statements explain in 
detail some of the data conta ined in those statements. After the notes, supplemental information is provided to 
show additional details about the Commission' s activities. Budgetary information required by the General 
Statutes can also be found in this part of the Statements. 

Go"ern men t-Wid e Fina ncial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a broad overview of the 

Commission's finances, similar in forma t to a financial statement of a private-sector business. The govern ment­
wide statements prov ide short and long-term informat ion about the Commission 's financial status as a whole. 

The two government-wide statements report the Commission's net position and how they have changed. fe t 
position is the difference between the Commission's total assets and total liabi lities. Measuring net position is 

one way to gauge the Commission's financial condition. 

The government-wide statemen ts are divided into rwo categories: I) governmental activities; and 2) business­
type activities. The governmental activities include most o f the Commission's basic services sllch as public 
safety, economic and phys ical development, human services, workforce devel opment, and general govern ment 
State and federal grant funds finance most of these activities. The business-rype activities are those that the 
Commission charges customers to provide services. The primary purpose of these activities is to facilitate 
affordable housing for the popu lations of the counties in Region Q. 

The government-wide financial statements are on Exhibits I and 2 of this report. 

Fund Financial Statements 

The Fund Financial Statements (see Figure I) provide a more detailed look at the Commission's mOSI significant 

activ ities. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been 

segregated for specific activities or objectives_ The Mid-East Commission, like a1\ other governmental entities 

in North Carolina, uses fund accounting to ensure and reflect compliance (or non-compliance) with finance­
related legal req ui rements, such as the North Carolina Genera l Statutes or the Commission's budget ordinance. 

All of the funds of the Mid-East Commission can be divided into two categories: governmenta l funds and 
proprietary funds. 
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Management Discussion and AnalysIs 
Mid-East Commission 

Gove rn me nta l Fu nds - Governmenta l fu nds are used to account fo r those functions reported as governmental 
activities in the govemmenHvide financial statements. Most of the Commission's basic services are accounted 
for in governmenta l funds. These funds focus on how assets can readily be converted into cash flow in and out, 
and what monies are left at year-end that will be available for spending in the next year. Governmental funds 
are reported using an accounting method called modified accrua l accounting which provides a short-term 
spending focus . As a result, the governmental fund financial statements give the reader a detailed short-term 
view that helps him or her detenn ine if there are more or less financial resources available to finance the 
Commission's programs. The relationship between government activities (reported in the Statement of Net 
Position and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds is described in a reconc iliation that is a part of 
Lilt: rund financial statements. 

The Mid-East Commission adopts an annual budget for its Genera l Fund, as required by the General Statutes. 
The budget is a legally adopted document that incorporates in put from the citizens of the Commission, the 
management of the Commiss ion, and the decisions of the Board about which services to provide and how to pay 
for them. It also authorizes the Commission to obtain funds from identified sources to finance these current 
period activities. The budgetary statement provided for the General Fund demonstTates how well the 
Commission complied with the budget ord inance and whether or not the Commission succeeded in providing 
th e services as planned when the budget was adopted. The budgetary comparison statement uses the budgetary 
basis of accounting and is presented using the same fonnat, language, and classifications as the lega l budget 
document. The statement shows fou r columns: I) the original budget as adopted by the Board ; 2) the final 
budget as amended by the Board; 3) the actual resources, charges to appropriations, and endi ng balances in the 
Genera! Fund; and 4) the difference or variance between the final budget and the actual resources and charges. 

Prop"ieta ry Funds - Mid-East Commission has one kind of proprietary fund. Enterprise Funds are used to 
report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financia l statements. 
Mid-East Commiss ion uses an enterprise fund to account for the activities of blended componem unit, the Mid­
East Deve lopment Corporation, Inc. These funds are the same as those separate activities shown in the business­
type activ ities in the Statement of Net Positi on. 

Notes to the Financial Sta tements - The notes provide additional information that is essential ro a full 
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the 
financial statements follow Exhibit 10 of this report. 

Interdependence with Other Entitites· The Mid-East Commission depends on financial resources flowing 
from, or assoc iated with, both the Federal Government and the State of North Carolina. Because of this 
dependency, the CommiSSion's is subject to changes in specific flows of intergovernmental revenues based on 
modifications to Federal and State laws and Federal and State appropriations. 
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Management Discussion and AnalysIs 
Mid-East Commission 

Gove rn ment-W ide Financ ial Ana lys is 

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as one useful indicator of a government's financial conditioll. 

The assets of the Mid-East Commission exceeded liabilities by $835,338 as of June 30, 2013. The 

Commission's net assets decrease by $69,390. Mid-East Commission uses the Governmental Activities capilal 

assets of$43,527 to provide services to citizens; consequently. these assets are not available for future spending 

An additional portion of the Commissions net position $586,596 represents resources that are subject to external 

restrictions on how they may be used. The remain ing balance of $436,926 for governmental activities is 
unrestricted. 

Mid-Eas t Co mmission 'S Ne t Assets 
Figure 2 

Governmental Business-Type 
Activities Activities Total 

2013 2012 2013 JOl2 2013 2012 

Current and other assets 51,832,177 51.975,918 $ 298,955 $ 307,969 52,131,132 52,283,887 
Capita! assets 43.527 36,123 1,089,925 1.136,339 1.133,452 1.172,462 

Total assets 1,875,704 2,012,041 1,388,880 ! ,444,308 3,264.584 3.456,349 

Long-term liabilities outstanding 226,951 1,581.736 1,608,403 1,581,736 1,835,354 
Other liabilities 808,655 814,764 38,855 40,283 847.510 855,047 

Total liabilities 808.655 1,041,715 1.620.591 1,648,686 2,429,246 2,690,401 

Net position: 
Net investment in capilalassets 43,527 36,123 (491,8 11) (704,722) (448,284) (668,599) 
Restricted 586,596 759,476 586,596 759,476 
Unrestricted 436,926 174,7?7 260.100 500,344 697,026 675.071 

Total net position S \,067,049 S 970,326 $ (231.71 1) $ (204,378) S 835.338 $ 765.948 

Several particular aspeclS of the Commiss ion's financial operations positively in fluenced the tOlal unrestricted 
net position: 

• Careful management of expenses o f the Commission's financial operations positively influenced resources to 

support indirect expenses. 
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Management Discussion and Analysis 
Mid-East Commission 

Revenues: 

Mid-East Co mm ission 
Changes in Net Position 

Figure 3 

Governmental 

Activities 

Business-Type 

Activities 

2013 2012 2013 2012 

Total 

2013 2012 

Program Revenues 

Charges for Services 

Operating grants 

General revenues: 

, , , 193,93 I $ 

128.85 1 

221.207 $ 193,931 S 221,207 

Grants and contr ibutions not 

restricted to specific programs 

Invo:stment earnings. unrestricted 

Tota[ revenues 

Expenses: 

Economic & Physical Development 

Human Services 

Indirect costs 

Business type activities 

Total expenses 

Increase (decrease) in net position before 

transfers 

Transfers 

Increase (decrease) in net position 

Net position. July 1 

Net position. June 30 

7.079.160 7.403.756 21 2.252 7.208.011 

25,685 

7,[04.845 

3,035,611 

3,337. 153 

635,358 

7,008,122 

96.723 

96.723 

970.326 
$ 1,067.049 $ 

13.958 

7.417.714 

3551,775 

1265,262 

565,634 

7.382.671 

35,043 

61.163 

128 

384.073 

411,406 

411,406 

(27.333) 

402 

433.861 

470,898 

470,898 

(37.037) 

35.043 (27,333) (37,037) 

935,283 (204.378) (167.341) 

970.326 .$ (231,71 1) S (204,378) $ 

61.163 

25.813 
7,488.918 

3.035,611 

3,337.153 

635.358 

411 ,406 

7.4 19,528 

69,390 

69,390 

765,948 

835.338 .$ 

7,616.008 

14,360 

7.851.575 

3,551.775 

3,265,262 

565,634 

470,898 

7,853,569 

(1.994) 

(1,994) 

767.942 

Governmeota l activities: Govemmental activ ities depreciation decreased the Commission's net position by 
$]0,288 

Business-type activit ies: Business-type activities depreciation decreased the Commission's net position by 
$48,200. 
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Management Discussion and Analysis 
Mid-East Commission 

Financial Ana lys is of th c Co mm ission 's Funds 

As noted earlier, the Mid-East Commission uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with 
finance-related legal requirements. 

Gove rnm ental Funds. The focus of the Mid-East Commission's governmental funds is to provide information 
on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of usable resources. Such information is useful in assesslllg the 

Mid-East Commission's financing requirements. Specifically, fund balance available for appropriation can be a 

useful measure o f a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 

The General fund is the chief operating fund of Mid-East Commission. At the end of the current fiscal year, the 
fund balance of the General Fund was $244,704, while fund balance available was $0. 

At june 30, 2013, the Governmental Funds of the Commission reported a combined fund balance of $586,596 
with a net decrease of $I72,880. Included in these changes in fund ba lance is an increase only in the General 
Fund. 

Gencra l Fun d Budgetary Highli ghts. During the fisca l year, the Commission revised the budget on several 

occasions. Genera lly, budget amendments fall inlo one of three categories: 1) amendments made to adjust the 
estimates that are used to prepare the original budget ordinance once exact information is available; 2) 

amendments made to recognize new funding amounts from ex!Crnal sources, such as Federal and State grants; 
and 3) increases in appropriations that become necessary (Q maintain services. 

Propricla l-Y Funds: The Commission's proprietary funds provide the same type of infonnation found in the 
government-wide statements but in more detail. The total decrease in net position was $27,333. 

Cap it:ll Asset and Debt Adminis tration 

C:lp il:ll assets. The Mid~East Commission's capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as 
of June 30, 2013 totals $43,527 (net of accumulated depreciation) and $1,089,925 (net of accumulated 
depreciation) respectively. These assets are primarily equipment for the governmental activi ties, and buildings 
and land for the business-type activities. 

Land 

Buildings 

Equipment 

Total 

Mid~E3st Co mm ission 's Cap it:11 Assets 
(nct of depreciation) 

s 

S 

Figure 4 

Governmental 
Activities 

2013 2012 

$ 

43,527 36.123 
43,517 S 36.123 
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$ 

Business-Type 
Activities 

2013 2012 

98,750 S 98,750 

984,999 1.032,457 

6,176 5.132 

S 1,089,925 SI,136,339 

Total 
2013 2012 

S 98,750 $ 98,750 

984,999 1.032,457 

49,703 41.255 

S 1,133,452 S 1.172,462 



Management Discussion and Analysis 
Mid-East Commission 

Additional mfonnation on the Commission's capital assets can be found in the notes of the Basic Financial 
Statements. 

Long-term Debt. As of June 30, 2013 the Mid-East Commission's nOles payable totaled $-0- for the 

Intennediary Reiending Program and $1,581,736 for the Mid-East Development Corporation 

Mid-East Commission's Outstanding Debt 
Compensated Absences and Insta llment Purchases 

Figure 5 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities Total 

2013 2012 2013 2012 20 13 2012 
Compensated absences $ 111,344 $ 108,711 $ $ $ 111,344 $ 108,71 J 

OPEB Liability 48,368 28,560 48,368 28,560 
Installment purchases 226,951 1,581,736 1,608,403 1,581,736 1,835,354 
Total $ b9,7 11 $ J)7,94lJ s: 1,)&UJ(; :£: 1,(;07,0&& $' 1,74[,44& S 1,l)'1,;;') 

Additiona[ information regarding the Mid~East Commission's long-tenn debt can be found in the notes 10 the 
financia l statements. 

Economic }~actors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates 

The Mid-East Commission, Region Q, cont inues to experience high unemployment. However, federal funding 

for the Work Force Investment Act during the last several fiscal years was reduced. We anticipate this reduction 

to continue. These reductions have affected the Commission's funding level and staffing patterns. 

Reques t fo r Information 

This report is designed to provide an overview of the Commission's finances for {hose with an interest in this 

area. Question concerning allY of the infonnation found in this report or requests fo r additional infonnation 
should be directed to: 

Mid-East Commission 

1385 John Small Avenue 

Washington, NC 27889 

You can also call 252-974-1853, visit their website at www.mideastcom.org.orsendane-mailto 

Idodge@mideastcom.orq for more Information 
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 





ExhIbIt 1 

Mid-East CommIssion 
Statement of Net Position 

June 30, 2013 

Primary Governm ent 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities Tota l 

ASS ETS 
Cash and ca"h pquivalents S 1,018,616 • 183,465 S 1,202,001 
Cash - Security deposits 15,276 15,276 
Cash· Escrow 2,125 2,125 
Cash - Reserve 81,635 81,635 
Restricted Cash 
Grants receivable 481,310 481,310 
Accounts receivable 331,051 14,299 345,350 
Prepaids 1,200 2,155 3,355 
Total Current Assets 1,832,177 298,955 2,131,132 

Capital assets: 
Land, improvements, and 
construction in progress 98,750 98,750 
Other capital assets, net of 
depreciation 43,527 991, 175 1,034,702 

Total capital assets 43,527 1,089,925 1.133,452 
Total assets 5 1,875,704 $ 1,388,880 5 3,264,584 

LIAB ILITI ES 
Accounts payable and accrued 
expenses $ 760,287 $ 23,630 $ 783,917 
OPEB payable 48,368 48,368 
Security deposits 15,225 15,225 
Long-term liabiliries: 

Due within one year 24,038 24,038 
Due in more than one year 1,557,698 1,557,698 

Total liabilities 808,655 1.620,591 2,429,246 

NIT POSITION 
Net Investment in Capital Assets 43.527 (491,811) (448.284) 
Restricted 

Stabilization by State Statute 1,051.193 1,051,193 
Economic development (464.597) (464.597) 

Unrestricted (deficit) 436,926 260,100 697,026 
Tol:;l] oPt poSition , 1,067,049 , (231,711) S 835,338 

The nDles to the financial statements are an integral part of this statemenl. 
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FunctionsLPrograms 
Pri ma ry gove rnm ent: 
Governmental Activities: 

Economic and physicill development $ 

Human services 
Indirect costs 

Total governmental activi ties 

Business-type activities' 
Mid-East Development Corporation 

Total bUSiness-type activities 
Total primary government $ 

Exhibit 2 

MID-EAST COMMISSION 
Statement of Activities 

For the Year Ended june 30, 2013 

Program Revenues 

Charges for Operating Grants 

ExE:enses Services and Contributions 

3,035,611 $ $ 3,676,2 40 
3,337,153 3,402,920 

635,358 
7,008.122 7,079,1 60 

411.406 193,931 128,851 
411.406 193,931 128,851 

7,419,528 $ 193,931 $ 7,208,011 

General revenues: 
Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs 
Unrestricted investment earnings 

Total general revenues 
Change in net position 

Net position, beginning 
Net position, ending 

The notes 10 the finanCial statements are an integra l part of thiS statement 
- 1 2 -



EXhIbIt 2 

Net (ExEensel Revenue and Changes In Net Position 
Primary Government 

Capital Grants and Governmental BUSiness-type 
Contributions Activities Activities Total 

$ $ 640.629 640.629 
65.767 65.167 

(635.358) (635.358) 
71,03B 71 .038 

61.163 (27.461) (27.461) 
61.163 (27.461) (27.461) 

$ 61,163 71.038 (27.461) 43,577 

25.685 128 25,813 
25.685 128 25.813 
96,723 (27.333) 69,390 

970,326 (204.378) 765,948 
$ 1,067.049 $ (231.711) S 835,338 

The notes to the finanCIal statements are an integral p~~~ t(lis statement. 



Exh ibit 3 

MID-EAST COMMISSION 
Balance Sheet 

Governmental Funds 
June 30, 2013 

l\laior Funds 
Governmental 

General Fund SEecial Revenue Funds 
ASSETS 

Cash and cash eqUIvalents $ $ 1,018,616 $ 1,018,616 
Grants receivable 481.310 481,310 
Re<;trir:tPn r-Ish 
Accounts receIVable 5,872 5,872 
Other receivables 16,857 16,857 
Loans receivable 308,322 308,322 
Prepaids 1.200 1,200 
Due from other funds 335,016 (335,016) 

Total assets 340,888 1,491.289 1.832,177 

LIA BILITI ES 
Liabilities: 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 760,287 760,287 

Total liabilities 760,287 760,287 

DEF ER RED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Unearned revenues 96,184 389,110 485,294 

Total deferred inflows of resources 96.184 389,110 485,294 

FUND BALANC ES 
Restricted 

Stabilizatio n by State Statute 244,704 806,489 1,051,193 
Economic development 

Committed 
Economic development (464,597] (464,597] 

Total fund balances 244,704 341,892 586,596 

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and 
fund balances S 340,888 $ 1.491,289 

Amounts reported for governmental activities In the statement of net pOSition (ex hibIt I) are dIfferent because: 

Capital assets used in ~overnmental activities are not financial resources and therefore are 
not reported in the funds: 

Deferred inflows of resources for grants receivable. 

Some liabilities. including bonds payable and "'((rued interest, are not due and payable in 
current period and therefore are not reponed in the funds 

Total net position of governmental actiVIties 

The notes to the finanCial statements are an Integral part 9f this statement 
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43,527 

485,294 

(48,368) 
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Exhlbil4 

MID-EAST COMMISSION 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes In Fund Ba lances 

Governmental Funds 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Major Funds 

General S~ecial Revenue Total 
REVENUES 
Federal awards $ $ 4,371,085 $ 4,371,085 
State awards 1,677,169 1,677,169 
Local in kind match 264,393 Zb4,393 
Other local revenue 220,095 464,194 684,289 
Program income 36,391 36,391 
Interest income 1,041 24,644 25,685 

Total revenues 221,136 6,837,876 7,059,012 

EXPENDITURES 
Economic and physical development 112,334 3,646,674 3,759,008 
Human services 3,472,884 3,472,884 

Total expenditures 112,334 7,119,558 7,231,892 

Revenues over (under) expenditures 108,802 [281,682) (172,880) 

OT HER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Transfers (to) from other funds 20.$06 (20,$06) 
Transfer of local matching funds (128,169] 128,169 

Total other financing sources (uses) (107,663] 107,663 

Net change in fund balance 1,139 {l74,O19} (172,880] 

Fund balances, beginning 243,565 515,911 759,476 

Fund balances, ending $ 244,704 $ 341,892 $ 586,596 

The notes to the financial statements are an Integral pal'! 'if 5h!S statement 



MID-EAST COMM ISSION 
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues. Expenditures. and Changes in Fund Balances 

of Governmental Funds ro the Statement of Activities 
For the Year Ended June 30.2013 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different 
because: 

Net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expend itures. However, in the Statement 
of Activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and 
reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays 
exceeded depreciation in the current period. 

Book value ofasser sold 

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources 
are not reported as revenues in the funds. 

June 30, 2012 
June 30. 2013 

Change in deferred revenues 

Some expenses reported in the sta tement of activities do not require the use of current 
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. 

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to governmental 
funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current 
financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction has any effect on net 
assets. This amount is the net effect of these differences in the treatment of long-term 
debt and related item s. 

Total changes in net position of governmental activities 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral P<.'!~~ !hls statemen t 

$ 

$ 

Exhibit 5 

(172,880) 

16,627 

(9,223) 

(430,238) 
485,294 

55,056 

(19,808) 

226,951 

96,723 



MID-EAST COMMISSION 
General Fund 

Exhibit 6 

Statement of Revenues. Expenditures. and Changes in Fund Balances - Annual Budget and Actual 
For the Year Ended June 30. 2013 

Genera! Fund 
Variance with 
Fina! Budget -

Original Fi nal Postive 
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) 

Revenues: 
Other local revenue S 218,956 $ 218,956 $ 220,095 $ 1,139 
Interest [ncome 1,041 1,041 1,041 

Total Revenues 219,997 219,997 221.136 1.139 

Expenditures: 
General Government 112,334 112,334 112,334 

Total Expenditures 112,334 112,33 4 112,334 

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 107,663 107,663 108,802 1,139 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Transfers (to) from other funds 20,506 20,506 20,506 
Trasfer of local matching funds (128,169) (128,169) 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (107,663) (107,663) 

Net Change in fund Balance $ $ 1,139 $ 1,139 

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 243,565 

Fund Balances, End of Year $ 244,704 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral paf10J ~his statement 



MID-EAST COMMISSI ON 
Statement of Fund Net Position 

Proprietary Fund 

ASSETS 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash - Security deposits 
Cash - Escrow 
Cash - Reserve 
Accoun ts receivable 
Prepaid expenses 

Total current assets 

Capital assets: 
Land 

June 30. 2013 

Other capital assets, net of depreciation 
Total capital assets 

$ 

Major Enterprise Fund 
Mi d-East Development 

Corporation 

183,465 
15,276 

2,125 
81,635 
14,299 

2,155 
298,955 

98,750 
991.175 

1,089,925 

Total Assets $ _ ___ -"1,"'38"8,,,8"'8"--0 

LIABI LITIES 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Security deposits 
Notes payable - current 

Total current liabilities 

Noncurrent liabilities: 
Notes payable - noncurrent 

Total noncu rrent liabilities 

Total liabilities 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 
Unrestricted 

Total Net Position 

$ 

The notes to the financial statements are an Integral pa_'193 ~his statement 

23,630 
15,225 
24,038 
62,893 

1,557,698 
1.557,698 

1,620,591 

(491,811) 
260,100 

(231,711 ) 

Exhibit 7 



MID-EAST COMMISSION 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net POSition 

Proprietary Fund 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Malor Fund 
Mid-East Development 

Coq;!:oratlon 
OPERATING REVENUES: 
Rental income $ 183.809 
Operation and management 792 
Other revenue 9.330 

Total operating revenues 193,931 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Management related 65,227 
Operation of program services 203,252 
Contractual services 56,510 
Depreciation 48,204 

Total operating expenditures 373.193 

Operating income (loss) (179.262) 

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES): 
Rental assistance - RECD 104,713 
Interest subsidies - RECD 24,138 
Interest income 128 
Contributions and local suppon 
Interest expense (38.213) 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 90,766 

Income (Joss) before capital contributions (88.496) 

Capi tal contributions 61.163 

Change in net position (27.333) 

Total net position. beginning (204.378) 

Total net position. ending S (231.711) 

The notes to the financial statements are an Integral Pc:'1Cij ~hls statement 
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MID-EAST COMMISSION 
Statement of Cash Flows 

Proprietary Fund 
For the Year Ended June 30, 20 13 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERAT ING ACf IVITIES: 
Cash received from renters 
Other cash received 
Cash paId for goods and services 
Cash paid to employees for services 

Net cas h provided (used) by operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM NO N-CA PITAL FINANCING ACn VITIES: 
Rental assistance and interest subsidies 
Contributions and local support 

Net cash provided (used) by non-capital finanCing activities 

CAS H FLOWS FROM CAP ITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVIT IES 
Capital contributions 
Acquisition and construction of capital assets 
Disposal of asset 
Principal paid on long-term debt 
Interest paid on long-term debt 

Net cash provid ed (used) by capital and re lated fina nCing activities 

CAS H FLO\VS FR01VI INVESfING ACTIVITI ES: 
Interest income 

Net cash provid ed (used) by investing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning 

Cash and cash equivalents, ending 

The notes to the financial statements are an Integral pq~ this statement. 

s 

s 

Major Fund 
Development 
Corporation 

183,809 
10,122 

(254,221) 

(65.227) 

(125.517) 

128,851 

128,851 

61,163 
(1.644) 

(142) 
(26.667) 
(38,213) 

[5.503) 

128 
12B 

(2.041) 

284.5 42 

S ~===,2",8~2 .,,5 O:;;l~ 
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MID-EAST COMM ISSION 
Reconciliation of the Statement of Cash Flows of Proprietary Fund 

For the Year Ended Ju ne 30, 2013 

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided (used) by 
operating activities 

Operating income (Joss) 

Adjustments to reconcile excess of revenues over (under) expenses to net 
cash used by operating activities 

Depreciation 

Changes In current assets and current liabilities 
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 
Increase (decrease) in security deposits 

Total adjustments 

. Net cas h provided (used) by operating activities 

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information: 

$ 

$ 

Exhibit 9 contmued 

(179,262) 

48,204 

7,141 
(168) 
(625) 
(807) 

53,745 

(125,517) 

Rental assistance from the Rural Economic and Community Development Service was applied to cover 
note principal of $ 104,713. Interest subsidies in the amount ofS24,138 were applied to the corporation's debt 

The notes to the financial statements are an Integral p~Ti~f _this statement 
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L S,'mmary Of Significant AccOIlOong ?nj!Cle'i 

MID-EAST COMMISSION 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

for the Year Ended June 30, 2:013 

The accountmg policies of Mid-East Commission conform to generally accepted accounting principles as applicable to Councils of 
Government. The following is a summary of the more Significant accounting policies 

A. Reporting Enti ty 

Mid-East Commission, a Council of Government for Region Q. was established to coordinate various funding received from federal 
and State agencies. Currently, there are 5 county governments and 40 municipal governments participating as members m the 
Mid-East Commission. As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial statements present the 
Commission and its component unit, a legally-separate entity for which the Commission is financially accountable. The blended 
component unit, although it is a legally separate entlty, is, in substance, part of the Commission's operations. 

Blended Component ([nit 

Mid ·East Development Corporation 
The Mid·East Development Corporation, a non-profit corporation, was formed in February 1990. for the primary purpose of 
facilitating affordable housing for the populations of the Counties in Region Q. The by-laws signed on March 15, 1990, state that 
the Board of Directors shall COnSiSt of the chairman of the Mid-East Commission Board, the five county commissiOner 
representatives and five of the municipal representatives. no twO of whom shall be from the same county, as elected from the Mid­
East Commission Board. On February 2:B, 1991. Mid-East Commission entered into a contract with Mid-East Development 
Corporation by which Mid-East Commission will provide administrative services for the Corporation. Therefore, the Corporation 
is reported as an enterprise fund In the Commission's financial statements. 

Mid-East Development Corporation did not issue separate financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2:013. 

B. Basis Of Prrsenratiog - Basis of Accounting 

Basis of Presentation. Measurement FOalS - Basis of Accounting 

Government-wide Statements: The statement of net position and the statement of activities display information about the primary 
government. These statements include the financial activities of the overall government. Eliminations have been made to 
minimize the double counting of internal activities. These statements distinguish between the govemmenroi and busllless·type 
actiVities of the Commission. Governmental activities generally are financed through intergovernmental revenues and other non­
el{change transactions. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties. 

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for the different business·type 
activities of the Commission and for each function of the Commission's governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are 
specifically associated with a program or function and. therefore. are dearly identifiable to a particular function. Indirect expense 
allocations that have been made in the funds have been reversed for the statement of activities. Program revenues include (a) fees 
and charges paid by the recipients of goods or servIces offered by the programs and (b) grants and contributions that are 
restricted to meeting the operational or capi tal requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program 
revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues. 

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the Commission's funds. Separate statements 
for each fund category - governmental and proprietary _ are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major 
governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental and enterprise funds are 
aggregated and reported as nonmaJor funds 

Proprietary fund operatlng revenues. such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions associated with the prinCipal 
activity of the fund . Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal values. 
Nonoperating revenues, such as subsidies and investment earnings, result from non-exchange transactions. Other non·operating 
items such as invesunent earnings are ancillary activities. 
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Notes to the ~lnancial :statements 

The CommissIon reports the following major governmental funds: 

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Commission. The General Fund accounts for all financial 
resources except those that are reqUIred to be accounted for in another fund. The primary revenue source is membership dues of 
the participatIng local governmental units. 

SpeC/of Revenue Funds· The Special Revenue Fund accounts for specific. revenue sources (other than expendable trusts or major 
capital projects) that are legally restricted to expendItures for specified purposes. The Commission reports all Special Revenue 
Funds withm Aging. Workforce Development Region Q. Economic development. Mid-East Revolvmg Loan Fund. Mid-East IRP 
Fund, Planning, State Technical Assistance, Hispafllc ESt. Program. Roanoke-Chowan DTf'. 

The Commission reports the fol!owing major enterprise fund: 

Mid-East Developmenc Corporation· This fund is used to account for the Commission's facilitation of affordable housing in Region 
Q. 

C. Measurement FoCUS Basis of ACCQJ!otjog 

[n accordance WIth North Carohna Genera l Statutes. all funds of the Commission are malntalfled dunng the year on the modified 
accnlal basis of accounting. 

Government,wlde and Propnecory Fund Financiol Statements - The government·wide and proprietary fund financial statements 
are reported using the economic resources measurement focus. The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements 
are reported USing the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time 
liabilities are incuITt'<!. regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Non·exchange transactions, in which the Commission 
8Jves (or receives) value WIthout directly receIVing (or giving) equal value in exchange, include grants and donations. Revenue 
from grants and dOnations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied_ 

Amounts reported as program revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants for goods. services. or privileges prOVided. 
(2) operating grants and contributions, and (3) capital grants and contributions, including spe<:ial assessments. Internally 
dedicated resources are reported as general revenues ra ther than as program revenues. 

Proprietary fu nds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses 
generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods In connection with a propnetary fund's principal 
ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the Commission enterprise funds are charges to customers for rent. 
Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of rentals, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. 
All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are r('ported as nonoperating revenues and expenses 

Governmental Fund Financial Statements - Governmental funds are reported USing the current financial resources measurement 
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when measurable and available. 

Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for prinCipal and interest on generallong·term debt. 
claIms and Judgments. whIch are recogmzed as expendItures to the extent they have matured. General capital asset a(qui!>ilioJl~ 
are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and acqUIsitions under capital leases are 
reported as other financing sources. 

The CommIssion conSiders all revenues available if they are collected within 90 days after year·end. Expenditure-driven grants 
are recognized as revenue when the qualifying expendirures have been incurrt'<! and all other grant requirements have been 
satisfied 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 

Under the terms of grant agreements, the Commission funds certain programs by a combination of specific cost-reimbursement 
grants, categorical block grants, and general revenues. Thus when program expenses are incurred, there are both restricted and 
unrestricted net assets available to finance the program. It is the Commission's policy to first apply cost-reimbursement grant 
resources to such programs, followed bycategorical block grants, and then by general revenues. 

All governmental and business-type aetivices of the Commission follow FAS8 Statements and Interpretations Issued on or before 
November 30, 1989, Accounting Principles Board Opinions, and Accountmg Research Bulletins, unless those pronouncements 
conflict with GASB pronounCements 

D. Budaetary Dara 

The Commission's budgets are adopted as required by the North Carolina General Statutes. An annual budget is adopted for the 
General Fund_ Project ordinances are adopted for the special revenue fund_ All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end. All 
budgets are prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Some spedal revenue fund pr01ects are budgeted on the 
period of the corresponding grant. which does not follow the same fiscal year as the Commission. Expendiwres may not legally 
exceed appropriations at the functional level for the general fund and at the deparnnentallevel fo r the special revenue fund. The 
8udget Officer is authorized by the budget ordinance to transfer appropriations within a fund: however, any revisions tha t alter 
total expenditures of any fund must be approved by the governing board During the year, several amendments to the original 
budget were necessary_ The budget ordina nce must be adopted by Ju ly 1 of the fiscal year or the governing board must adopt an 
Interim budget tha t covers that time until the annual ordinance can be adopted 

E_ Assets. liabilities. Deferred Outflow/Inflows of Resources and Fund EqUity 

1. Deposits aDd InvestmentS 

All deposits orthe CommissiOn and Mid-East Development Corporation are made in Board-designated official depositories and are 
secured as requi red by State law (G.S_ 159-31]' The Commission and Mid-East Development Corporation may designate, as an 
offidal depository, any bank or savings association whose principal office is located in North Carolina. Also, the Commission and 
Mid-East Development Corporation may establish time deposit accounts such as NOW and SuperNOW accounts, money market 
accounts, and certificates of deposit 

State Law !G.S. IS9-30{c)} authorizes the CommissiOn and the Mid-East Development Corporation to lOvest in obligations of the 
United States or obligations fully guaranteed both as to principal and interest by the United States; obligations of the State of 
North Carolina; bonds and notes of any North Carolina local government or public authority; obligations of certain non­
guaranteed federal agendes: certain high quality issues of commercial paper and bankers' acceptances: and the North Carolina 
Capital Management Trust (NCCMT)_ The securities of the NCCMT Cash Portfolio, an SEC·registers (2a7) money market mutual 
fund are valued at fair value, which is the NCCMrs share pnee. 

z. Cash and Cash Equjvalents 

Mid-East Commission pools money from several funds to faCilitate disbursement and investment and to maximi"le investment 
income. Therefore, all cash and investments are essentially demand deposits and are considered cash and cash equivalents. Mid­
East Development CorporatIOn considers demand deposits and investments purchased with an original maturity of three months 
or less, which are not limited as to use, to be cash and cash equivalents_ in accordance with Rural Economic & Comml.lnity 
Development (RECD) service regulations, the Corporation maintains all RECD project funds separate a nd distinct from other 
projects, and tenant security deposits are maintained in an account separate from other proje1:t funds. 

3. Resttlqed As~ts 

Spe(.ia1 Revenue funds are also classified as restricted cash because It can be expended only for the purpo~s for which the monies were 
granted 

4. Al]owance for Douhtf!!! AccouotS 

All re<:eivables that histOrically experience uncolle<:tible accounts are shown net of an allowance for doubtful accounts. ThiS 
amount is estimated by analyzmg the percentage of receivables thac were wnnen off in prior years. Mid·East CommiSSion did not 
have an allowance for doubtful accounts for the current year 
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N01:es to [ne FInanCial Statements 

5_ prepaid Items 

Certalfl payments to vendors reflect COSts apphcable to furure accounnng periods and are recorded as prepaid Items In hoth 
government-wide and fund financial statements and expenses as the items ilre used 

6 Capital Assers 

Capital assets are deiined by the government as assets with an mltial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful 
life In excess of two years. Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost. Donated assets are hsted at the market 
value.;lt the C.;Ite of the don.;ltion. Certain items acquired before July 1. 1970 .;Ire ret:orded at an estimated original coS[. The total 
of such estimates is not conSidered large enough that errors would be material when the fixed assets are considered as whole. 
The cOSt of normal mamtenance and repairs tha t do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets' Jives are not 
capitalized. 

Capital assets are depreciated over their estimated useful Jives on a straight-line basis as follows: 

Asset Class 
Buildings 
Furniture and equipment 

7 I oog-wm Ob llganoos 

Estimated 

l!seh"l i(e 
40 years 

6-lOyears 

!n the government-wide financial statements and in the proprietary fund types In the fund finanCial statements, long-term debt 
and other long·term obligations are reported as liabilities 10 the applicable governmental activities, business-type activitles, or 
proprietary fund type statement of net assets. In the fund financial statements for governmental fund types, the face amount of 

8. Deferred O[ltfiowsbnflows of resources 

In addition to assets, the statement of finaocial poSition will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflow of 

resources_ This separate financial statement element, Deferred Outflows of Resources, represents a consumption of net 

position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an expense or expenditure until then. The 

Commission does nOt have any items that meets this criterion. 

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial positlon can also report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. 

This separate financial statement element, Deferred Inflows of Resources, represents an acquIs ition of net posi tion that 

applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as revenue untIl then_ The Commission has only one item tha t 

meet the criterion for thiS category - unearned grant revenues. 

9. Compensated AhsenceS 

The vacation poliCies of the Commission and Mid-East Development Corl>Oration generally provides for the accumulation of up to 
thirty (30) days of earned vacation leave with such leave being fully vested when earned_ The Commission adopted a policy of 
recognizing an expenditure for the current portion of the accumulated vacation pay. The corresponding liability is reported in the 
Commission's special revenue fund. For the Commission's proprietary fund_ Mid-East development Corporation, an expense and a 
liability for compensated absences and the salary-related payments are recorded WIthin the fund as the leave is earned 

The SICk leave poliCies of the Commission and Mid-East Development Corporation provide for an unlimited accumulation of 
earned sick leave. Sick leave does not vest, but any unused sick leave accumulated at the time of retirement may be used in 
determination of length of service for retirement benefit purposes. Since neither entity has any obligation for the accumulated 
SIck leave until it is actUally taken, no accrual for sick leave has been made 
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Notes to the FUlanci.:1l Statements 

10. Net pnSJtjno/Fuod Balancf'i 

Net position In government,wlde and proprietary fund financial statements are classliled as net IOvestmen\ ,n cap,tal assets; restricted; 

and unrestncted. Restricted net assets represent constraints on resources that are e,ther externally imposed by creditors, grantOl"S, 

contrlbutOl"S. 01" laws or regulatlOfls of other governments 01" Imposed by law through state statute 

Fund Balance$ 

In the governmental fund finanCial statements, fund balaJlce is composed of five classifications designed to disclose the hierarchy of 

constrillOts placed on how fund balance can be spent. 

The governmental fund types dasslfy fund b,dances oS follows: 

Nonspendable Fund Balance - This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are wi ther (a) not in spendable 

form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact 

Restricted Fund Balance - ThIs claSSIfication includes amounts that are res triCted to specIfic purposes externally Imposed by credItors or 

ReWicted for Subilization by State statute - po.-tion of fund balance that IS restrict<!d by SUle Statute [G.S. lS9-3{iI)/ 

CommItted Fund Balance - portion of fund balance that can only be used for specific purposes imposed by ma]olny vole by quorum of 

the Commission's governing body (highest level of decislon·making authonty). Any chilllges 01" removal of SpeCIfic purposes requires 

majority act ion by the governing body. 

Committed fo r Economic Development - portion of fund balance assigned by the board for ecoO()mic development. 

AsSigned Fund Balance - portion of fund tlaLance that the Commission intends to use fOC" specific purposes. 

Subsequent year's expenditures - portion of fund tlalance that is ilppropriated 10 the next year's budget that is not already dassified in 

restrICted or committed_ The governing body app-roves the appropriation; however the budget ordinance authorizes the manager to 

mod,fy the appropriations by resource or appropriation Within funds up to $100,000 

UnaSSigned Fund Balance - the portion of fund balance that has not been restricted, committed, or assigned to specJfic purposes or other 

The CommISSIon hilS iI revenue spending policy thilt prOVides guidance for programs WIth multiple revenue sources. The Finance Officer 

WIll use resources in the following hierarchy; bond p-roceeds, federal funds, State funds, local noo-commission funds, commission funds. 

For purposes of fund tlalance classif icatIon expenditures are to be spent from restricted fund balance first, followed in-order by 

committed fund balance, assigned fund bala nce and lastly unassigned fund tlalance. The Finance Officer has the authority to deviate 
from thiS policy if it is in the best interest of the Commission 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 

F Revenues ExpendiOires and Emenses 

(ostAliocatjoo Plan 

Mld.East Commission institutes an annual cost allocation plan, based on estlmates of the current year, in which indlre« costs are 
pro-rated to the various grants based on an indirect rate that is deterrmned in accordance wlth federal guidelines. The indirect 
COSts shown m thIS report for the various grants have been adlusted to the actual amount of mdirect expenditures for the year 
ended june 30. 2013 The rates, estimated and acnul, that were used to allocate indirect costs and fronge benefits are as follows 

Other ResourceS 

Indirect COSt rate 
Fringe benefit rate 

Estimated 
65.950% 
59.120% 

AI:!Iul 
319l% 

53.649% 

The general fund provides the basis of local resources for the special revenue funds. These transactions are recorded as 
"Transfers to other funds· or "Transfer of local matching funds· in the General Fund and "Transfers from General Fund" or 
'Transfer of local matching funds" in the recelvmg fund 

Fsnmares 

The preparation of financial statements in confonnity Wi th generally accepted accounting prindples requires management to 
make estimates and assumptsons th<lt affect the reported assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at 
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 

II. StewardshlQ Comoliance and Accountability 

A. SigOificant Violations of Finance-Related legal and Contractu,)1 Provisions 

1 Noncompliance With North Carolina G~n~ral Statutes 

No material Instances of noncompli<lnce with North Carolina Statutes were not~d during the audit. 

2, Contractual V;olallOns 

None. 

6. Deficit in Fund Balance or Net Po~ition of Individual Funds 

Nooe. 

C. Excess of ExOfnditurt\ OVll( Appfonri')c,ons 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 

lIl. Deta il Nores on AI! Funds 

A ""'"' 
l.~ 

All of the deposits of the Commission and the Development Corporation aTe either insured or collateralized by using one of two 
methods. Under the Dedicated Method, all depoSits exceeding the federal depoSitory Insurance coverage level art! collaterahzed 
with securities held by the Commission's and the Developmeflt Corporation·s agents in these units· names. Under the Poohng 
Method, which IS a collateral pool. all uninsured depOSits are collateralized With securi ties held by the State Treasurer's agent in 
the name of the State Treasurer. Since the State Treasurer is acting in a fiduciary capacity for the Commission and Development 
Corporation, these deposits are considered [Q be held by their agent in the entities' names. The amount of the pledged collateral is 
based on an approved averaging method for non·interest bearing deposits and the aemal current balance for interest· bearing 
depo~it.~. O .. positori~ u~ing the Pooling Method report to the Sl:.lte Treas\lrer the adequacy of their pooled collateral covering 
uninsured deposits. The State Treasurer does not confirm this information with the Commission or Development Corporation, or 
with the escrow agent. Because of the inability to measure the exact amount of collateral pledged for the Commission or 
Development Corporation under the Pooling Method, the potential exists for the under collateratization. and this risk may 
increase in periods of high cash flows. However, the State Treasurer of North Carolilla enforces strict standards of financial 
stability for each depository that collateralizes public deposits under the Pooling Method. The Commission has no policy 
regarding custodial credit risk for depoSits. but relies on the State Treasurer to enforce standards of minimum capitalization for 
all pooling met."od financial IDstltutions and to mODitor them for wmpliance. The CommiSSIOn compiles With the prOVISiOnS of 
G.S. 159-31 when designating official deposltones and venfylDg that depOSits are properly secured. The Oevelopment 
Corporation has no formal policy regardmg custodial credit risk for deposits. 

At June 30. 2013, the CommiSSion'S deposits had a carrying amollnt of S1,144,S38 and a bank balance of $1,236,357. Of the bank 
balance, $900.000 was covered by federal depository insurance and the remainder was covered by coilateral held under the 
pOOling method. 

2. Investments 

At June 30, 2013, the Commission had $156,579 invested with the North Carolina Management Trust's Cash Portfolio which 
earned a credit rating of AAAm by Standard and Poor's. The Commission has no policy regarding credit risk. 

3_ Bereivahles 

ReceIVables at the government·wide level at June 30, 2013 wefe as follows: 

Due From 
Other Loans 

Accounts Governments Receivable Total 

Governmental Activities· 
General S 5.812 S S S 5,872 
Other Governmental 16,857 481.310 308.322 806,489 
Total Receivables S 22,729 S 48l.310 S 308,322 S 812.361 

BUSiness· Type Activities: 
Mid·East Development Corp S 14.299 S S S 14,299 
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-4 (amra! Assets 

Capital asset aCtiVity for the Primary Government year ended June 30. 2013. was as follows 

Governmental AC[lYlDes 
Capital assets not bemg depreaated 

EqUIpment 
l.ess accumulated depreciation for Equipment 
Governmental actiVity capital assets, net 

Bl'gmning 
Balances 

July 1. 2012 

S 103,969 $ 
61,846 
36,123 

Increases 

26,915 S 
10.288 

Decreases 

Endmg 
Balances 

June 30. 2013 

(34.965) $ 
(25.142) 

95,919 
52.392 
43.521 

Depreciallon expense was cbarged to functions/programs 01 the primary government as follows : 

General government 
EconomiC Development 

Total Depreciation Expense 

Business·type Activities 
"'lid ·Eas t Development Corpora tion 
'Capital assets not being depreciated: 

'-'od 
Capital assets being depreciated: 

Buildings 
Furniture. fixtures, equipment 

Total capital assets being depreciated 
Less accumulated depredation for: 

Buildings 

$ 10.288 

$ 10.288 

Beginning 
Balances 

July 1, 2012 Increases Decreases 

$ 

1,315 
1,315 

41.933 

Endmg 
Balances 

June 30, 2013 

$ 98,150 

1,165,341 
46.836 

1,812,111 

180.342 

Furniture. fixtures. equipml'nt ~~~i~I~:::~~t:::::::~~I~~E Tot"l accumulated depreciation 

Total capital assets being depretiated, net 
Business·type activIties capital assets, net 

271 40,660 
48,204 821,002 

99U15 
$ 1.089,925 

loans Receivable 

The Revolving Loan Fund. established by Mid·East CommiSSion WIth Economic Development Administration grant funds, provides 
loans eligible to sffiillI businesses to boost economic development in the area. At June 30, 2013 loans reteivable amounted to 
n08,322 and consisted of several separate loans varying in amounts from $3,180 to 5148,568 with varying repayment schedules. 
One loan is In default in the amount of $49.222_ 

The In termediary Re·lending Program Fund. es tablished by the Mid·East Commission WIth the US Depanment of Agriculture· 
Rural Development loan funds, provides loans to eligible small businesses to boost «onomic development in the area. At June 30. 
2012 loans receivable amounted to $·0·. 
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Notes to the FinanCIal Statements 

B. I labiliTies 1._ 
Payables at the government ·wide h~\'el at June 30, 2013. were as follows 

Vendors Other Tota l 

Governmental ACtlvltle5 
Other Governmental S 760.287 S S 760.287 

Busllle5s-type Activities 
Mid·East Development Corporation S 23,630 S S 23,630 

2. pension plan aod Other post Employment ObliearioDs 

a. I oral GQvernmeotal Emnloyees' Retirement SYSTem 

~ DescriptiOn - The Mid·East Commission contributes to the statewide Local Government Employees' Retirement System 
(LGERS). a cost·sharing multiple-employer defined pension plan admmcstered by the State of North carohna. LGERS's provides 
retirement and disability benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Article 3 of G.5. Chapter 128 assigns the authority to 

establish and amend benefi t provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. The Local Governmental Employees' Retirement 
System is induded in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) fo r the State of North Carotina. The State's CAFR 
\Deludes finanCial statements and required supplementary information for LGERS. That report may be obtained by writing to the 
Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410, or by calling (919) 981-5454. 

Fundmg Policy . Plan members are required to contribute six percent of their annual covered salary to the System. The 
Commission is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. For the Commission, the current rate fo r employees not 
engaged in law enforcement as a percentage of annual covered payroll was 6.74%. The contribution requirements of members 
and of the Mid-East Commission are established and may be amended by the North Carolina General Assembly. The Council's 
contributions to LGERS for the years ended June 30, 2013, 2012, and 2011 were $76,728. $78,705, and $73,062, respectively. The 
contributions made by the Council equaled the required contributions for each year. 

b. Deferred Compensation Plan 

The CommiSSIon offers 1[S employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 
457. The plan, which is available to all CommiSSion employees. permi[S them to defer a portion of their salary until furure years. 
TIle deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency 
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Notes to the FlnarlClal Statements 

c. Otber pQSI Employment BenefitS 

Healtb(,]ce Beoefits 

plan Descriptjoo . Under the terms of a Board resolution. the Board adminIsters a Single employer defined benefit health care plan 
("the Remee Health Plan'l 

Funding Polley· According or board resolution, Mid·East Commission provides heahhcare benefits to retirees of the Commission 
who worked at least 1,000 hours per year, and have at least twenty (20) years of crtditablt: service with the Commission at age 
60, and who were hired before January 1. 20070r who retire in any category of unreduced service retirement benefit under Local 
Governmental Employees Retirement System. The Commission provides full coverage for full·nme employees and pro rata 
coverage for part-time employees in accordance with the following schedule: 20 years creditable service 60%; 2S years 
creditable service 80%; and 30 years creditable service 100%. The CommISSion b.::os cbo~en to fund the health care benefits on ~ 
pay as you go basis. Postemployment expenditures are made from the General Fund. which is maintained on the modified accrual 
basis of accounting. No funds are set aside to pay benefits and administration costs. These expenditures are paid as they come 
due. in fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the Commission made no contributions. 

Annual OPES Casr and Net OPES Obligation . The Commission's an nual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) is 
calculated based an the annual required concribunon a/the employer (ARC) 

The Commission has elected to calculate the ARC and related informanon using the alternative measurement method permitted 
by GASB Statement 4S for employers in plans with fewer than one hundred total plan members. The ARC represents a level of 
funding tbat. if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial 
liabi lities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thiny years. 

The following table shows the components of the Commission's annual OPES cost for the current year. the amount actually 
contributed to the plan, and cnanges in the Commission's net OPES obligation for the postemployment healthcare benefits: 

Annual reqUired cantribunon 
Interest on net OPES obligation 
Adjustment to annual required contribution 
Annual OPES cost (expense) 
Contributions made 
Increase (d&rease) in net OPES obligation 
Net OPES obligation. beginning of year 
Net OPES obligation, end of year 

$ 

$ 

7,016 
281 

12,511 
19,808 

19,808 
28,560 
48.368 

The Commission's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPES cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPE8 obligation for 
the year ended June 30,2013 were as follows' 

For Year Ended Annual OPES Percentage of Annual Net OPES 
30'lun Cost OPES Cost Contributed Obligation 

2011 $ 9,555 0.0% $ 19.110 
2012 , 9,450 0.0% $ 28,S60 
2013 , 19.808 0.0% $ 48.368 

Funded Starus and Funding Progress As of June 30, 2013, the actuarial accrued liabllity for benefits was SI70,02S, all of which 
was unfunded. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was S262,03S, and the ratio of the 
unfunded actuarial accrued liability to the covered payroll was S9 percenL 

The projection of future benefit payments for an ongoing plan involves estlmJtes of the value of reported amounts and 
assumptIons about the probability of occurrence of events far IDto the future 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 

Examples includ~ assumptions about future employment, mortality, and heajthcar~ trends_ Amounts determined regarding the 
funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are sub,~Ct to continual revision as actual results 
are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future The schedule of funding progreSS. presented 
as reqUired supplementary mformation followmg the notes to the financial Statements, presents informatIOn about the actuarial 
value of plan assets and the actuarial accrued liabilitles for benefits. 

Actuarial Methods Gnd Itssumptions. Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes itre based on the substantlv~ plitn 
(the plan as understood by the employer itnd the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided itt the time of each 
valuation itnd the historical patt~rn of sharing of benefit costs betw~~n the employer and plan m~mb~rs at that point. The 
actuarial methods and assllmptions used includ~ t~Chniqu~s that are designed to redllce the effects of short- term volatility in 
actuarial accrued liabiliLit::, <IIU.! th~ acruarial value assets. conslst~nt With the long-term perspective 01 the calculations. 

Th~ following Simplifying assumptions w~re made: 

Retlremelltuge for active employees· Based on the historical average retirement age for the covered group, active pl,m members 
were assumed to retire at age 62, or at tt:.e first subsequent year III which the member would qualify for benefits. 

Maritol Status· Marital status of members at the calculation date was ass limed to continue throughout retirement. 

Mortality - Life expectancies were based on mortality tables from the National Center for Health Statistics. The 2005 United 
States Life Tables for Males and for Females were used. 

Turnover - Non-group-specific age· based turnover data from GASB Statement 45 were used as the basis for assigning active 
members a probability of remaining employed until the assumed retirement age and for development of an unexpected future 
working lifetime assumption for purposes of allocating to periods the present value of total benefits paid 

Healtheare cost trend rate . The expected rate of increase in health care insurance premiums was based on projections of the 
Office of the Actuary at the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services. A rate of 8.00 percent initia!!y. reduced to an ultimate rate 
of S.60 percent after six years, was used. 

Health msu((mce premiums · 2012 health insurance for retirees were used as the basis for calculation of the present value of total 

lnflaoon rate - The expected long·term inflation assumption o(3,B percent was based on projected changed in the Consumer Price 
Index for urban Wage Earners and Clerical Workers (CPI-W) in The Z007 Annual Report afthe Board ofTrostees afFederal Old-Age 
and Survivors Insurance and Disability Insurance Trust Funds for an intermediate growth scenario. 

Payroll growth rate - The expected long·term payroll growth rate was assumed to equal the ra te of inflation. 

Based on the historical and e;.:pected returns of the Commission's shorNenn investment portfolio, a discount rate of 4.00 percent 
was used. In addition, a simplified version of the entry age actuarial COSt method was used. The unfunded actuaria l accrued 
liability is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on an open basis. The remaining amortization period at June 
30,2013, was twenty·eight years. 

3. Other Employment Benefits 

The Commission has elected to prOvide death benefits to employees through the Death Benefit Plan for members of the Local 
Governmental Employees' Retirement System (Death Benefit Plan), a multiple-employer, State·administered. cost·sharing plan 
funded on a one-year term cost basis. The beneficiaries of those employees who die in active service after one year of 
contributing membership in the System. or who die within 180 days after retirement or termination of service and have at least 
one year of contributing membership service in the System at the time of death are eligible for death benefits. Lump sum death 
benefit payments to benefiCiaries are equal to the employee's twelve highest months salary in a row during the tiY"enty-four 
months prior to the employee's death, but the benefit may not be less than 525,000 and will not exceed S50,000. All death benefit 
payments are made from the Death Benefit Plan. The (omission has no liability beyond the payment of monthly contributions 
Contributions are determined as a percentage of monthly payroll, bJsed upon rates established annually by the State The 
contributions to the Death Benefit Plan cannot be separated between the post-employment benefit amount and the other benefit 
amount. The Commiss!on considers these contributions to be immaterial 

- 32-



Notes to the Fmancial Statements 

4. Qperatiog 1 ease Commjtments 

The Commission conducts its operations in leased facilities under a non·cancelable operating lease. which expires in 2014 The 
CommiSSion also has operatmg leases for copiers and 3 telephone system. which expire through 2018 

The mmlmum rental commitments With mitJai Of femainmg terms in excess of one year under operating leases are as follows: 

Year Endmg 
30-Jun 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 
Total 

5. long_Term Qbljgations 

Loans Payable 

, 

S 

Payment 
136,868 

18,973 
18.973 
18,973 

4,642 
198,429 

In July 2003, the Commission entered in to a loan agreement with the U.S. Department of Agriculture· Rural Development for the 
purpose of providing loans to small businesses to boost economic development. On April 29, 2003, the loan was funded m the 
amount of S300,OOO at an annual interest rate of I%. Annual payments of principal and interest are due through August 2032. 
ThiS loan was paid off during the year_ 

Mid-East Development Corporation Debt 
Long-term debt conSISts of the following at year-end: 

3% restricted constr\lction loan with North Carolina Housing Finance Agency, to be wrluen off over a period of 5 
years, beginning 2007, after a 14 year compliance period. secured by a deed of trust. 

0% restricted construction loan with North Carolina Housing Finance Agency, secured by a real estate deed of trust, 
due in monthly installmellts ofS322. 

7.25% note payable to Rural Economic and Community Development, secured by real estate deed of trust. due in 
monthly installments of S496 including interest, maturing in June 2043 (RECD provides subSidies of 6.25%). 

6.25% note payable to USDA Rural Housing Service, secured by real estate. due in m monthly installments ofS1,377 
includi ng interest, maturing in 2051 (RHS provides interest subsidies of 4.6%), 

6_875% note payable to USDA Rural Housing Service, secured by real estate, due in monthly installments ofS148 
including illterest, maruring in 2015 (RHS provides interest subsidies of 4.6%), 

6.5% nOte payable to Rural Economic and Community Development, secured by real estate deed of trust, due in 
monthly installments ofS2,412 including interest, maturing in February 2044 (RECD provides interest subsidies of 
5.5%). 

s 28,118 

86,870 

213,977 

239,54-0 

23,847 

989,384 

Total S 1.581,736 
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Annual debt service requirements to maturity are as foHows 

Year Ending Total Interest Interest 
lune 30. Payment Interest Slibsidy Expense Principal 

2014 • 124.415 • 100,377 • 70,692 • 29,685 • 24,038 
2015 124,246 99,211 70,692 28,519 25,035 
2016 125.089 98.988 70,692 28,296 26,101 
2017 123.572 96,331 70,692 25,639 27.241 
2018 123.569 95,114 70,692 24,422 28,455 

2019-2023 589,735 454,298 353,461 100,837 135,437 
2024-2028 589,736 408,449 353,461 54,988 181.287 
2029-2033 589,736 344.682 353,461 (8,779) 245,054 
2034-2038 580,005 (97,717) 324.261 
2039-2043 (222,440) 436,899 
2044-2048 83,773 
2049-2053 

Total 

Nore: Inurest expense becomes negative In the last years ofche mortgage when the Interest subsidy is greater than the total mterest 
calculated. 

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities 

8eginning Ending Cu rrent 
Balance Balance Portion of 

61.30[2012 Increases Deaeases 6[30[Z013 Balance 
Governmental Activities: 
Installment Purchases • 226.951 • , (226,951) S • OPE8 Liability 28,560 19,808 .w,368 
Compensated absences 108,711 2,633 111.344 
Total governmental activities • 364.222 • 22,441 • (226,951) • 159,712 • 
Busmess Type Activities: 
Installment purchase • 1.608,403 • $ [26,6672 S 1.581,736 S 24,038 
Total business type activities • 1.608,403 S S ['26,667) S 1,581.736 S 24,038 

6_ RiSk MiiDill:emeul 

The Commission is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to. and destruction of assets; errors and 
omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The Commission participates in two self· funded risk finan cing pools 
administered by the Risk Management Agency of the North Carolina Association of County Commissioners. Through these pools, 
the Commission obtains property coverage equal to replacement cost vallics of owned property subject to a limit of$125.5 million 
for anyone occurrence, general and professional liability coverage of S2 million per occurrence, crime coverage of S250.000 per 
occurrence, and worker's compensation coverage up to the statutory limits. The pools are reinsured through a multi-state public 
entity carrier for single occurrence annual losses in excess of S500,OOO up to a $2 million limit for liability coverage, S600,OOO of 
~ggregate annual losses in excess of S50,000 per occurrence for property and crime coverage, and single occurrence losses of 
1350,000 for worker's compensation. 

Mid-East Commission carries commercial coverage for all other risks ofloss. There have been no significant reduction in 
Insurance CUV~lill::~ from the previous year and settled cla1ms have not exceeded coverage in any of the last three fiscal years. 

Mid-East Development Corporation is exposed to various risks of loss to torts; theft of. damage to, and destruction of assets; error 
and omission; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The Corporation carries commercial insurance for these nsks of loss. 
There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage from the previous year and settled claims have not exceeded 
coverage in any of the past three fisca l years 

In accordance with C.5. 159-29. the Commission"s employees that have access to $200 or more at any given time of the 
Commission's funds are performance bonded through a commercial surety bond The finance director is individually bonded for 
S50.000. 
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7. Contingent! jabilirjes 

At June 3D, 2013, they Commission was a defendant [0 variOUS lawsUits In the opinion of the CommlssLon's management and the 
Commission's attorney, the ultimate efTen of these legal matters will not have a matenal adverse effect on the CommissLon's 
financial poSLtlOn 

8. Deferred Dmflows and Inflows of ReSQlIrces 

Deferred inflows of resources at year-end is comprised of the following: 

Grants receLv:lble (net) 
Total 

C InterGmd Balances and Actiyjty 

Unavailable 
Revenue 

Unearned 
Revenue 

General ly, outstandmg ba lances between fun ds reported as "due to/from other funds" include outstanding charges by one fund to 
another fund for compensated absences, services, and other miscellaneous receivables/payable between funds. 

From the General Fund to the Special Revenue Fund 

Fund Balan(e 

Total 

S 335,016 

S 335,016 

The follOwing schedule provides management and citizens with information on the portion of General fund balance that is 

Total fu nd ba lance - General Fund 

l ess: 
Stabilization by State Statute 
Re maining Fund Balance 

III. Summary Disclnsure pfSignjfirant Contingencies 

Federal and Scare Assis ted programs 

s 244,704 

244,704 

s 

The Commission has received proceeds from fed eral and State grants. Periodic audits of these grants are required and certain 
costs may be questioned as not being appropriate expenditures under the grant agreements. Such audits could result in the 
refund of grant moneys to the grantor agencies_ Management believes that any requi red refunds will be immater ial No provision 
has been made in the accompanying financi al statements for the refun d of grant moneys. 

IV. Change in Accounting PrinCiples/Restatement 

The CommLssion illlplemeflted Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred 
Outflows of Resources, Deferred Innows of Resources, and Net Position, and Statement 65, Items Previously reported as Assets 
and liabilities, in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013. In accordance with GASB Statement 63, the Statement of Net Assets has 
been replaced With the St;Jtement of Net PO~ltion.ltcm~ on the Statement of Net Position Jre now classified in to Assets, DeferrPd 
Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position. 
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REQUIRED 

SUP PLEMENTAL FINANCIAL DATA 

This section contains addilional illfunllatioll re4uiret.l by gellt!rdlly 
accounting principals . 

• Schedule of Funding Progress for the OPEB 

• Schedule of Employer Contribution for the OPEB 





Actuarial 
Actuanal Value of 
Valuation Assets 

Date (.) 

30-Jun-ll 
30-Jun-12 
30-Jun-13 

MID EAST COMMISSION 
Other Post Employment Benefits 

Required Supplementary Information 
Schedule of Funding Progress 

Acruarial Accrued 
liability (AAL) Unfunded 
-ProJected Unit AAL Funded 

Credit (UAAL) Ratio 
(b) (b ~ .) (./b) 

$ 171,128 , 171,128 0.0% 
$ 173,031 $ 173,031 0.0% 
S 170,028 $ 170,028 0.0% 

~36 ~ 

UAALasa 

Covered % of Covered 

Payroll Payroll 
[e) ((b~.)fe) 

$ 291,951 58.62% 

$ 295,099 58.63% 

$ 262.035 64.89% 



Year Ended 
June 30, 

2011 
2012 
2013 

MID EAST COMMISSION 
Other Post Employment Benefits 

Required Supplementary Information 
Schedule of Employer Contributions 

Annual Required Percentage 
Contribution Contributed 

$ 9,555 0.00% 
$ 9,450 0.00% 
$ 19,808 0.00% 
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GENERAL FUND 

The General Fund accounts fo r resources traditionally associated with government that 
are not required legally or by sound financial management to be accounted for in 

othe r funds. 





MID· EAST COMMISSION 
General Fund 

Statement of Revenues, EKpenditureS, and 
Changes in Fund Balances· Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 

2013 
Variance 
Positive 

Budaet Actual (N!:B;ative) 
REVENUES: 

Other local revenue S 218.956 S 220.095 • 1,139 
Interestmcome 1.041 1.041 

TOTAL REVENUES 219,997 221.136 1,139 

EXPENDITURES 
General government 112,)34 112.334 
Capital outlay 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 112,)34 112.334 

Revenues over (under) etpenditures 107,663 108,802 1.139 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfer.; from (to) other funds: 20,506 20506 
Transfer out of local matching funds (128.169) (128.169) 

TOTA L OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) (107,663) (107,663) 

Change in fund balance S • 1.139 • 1.139 

Fund Balances: 
Beginning of Year 243.S6S 

End of Year S 244.104 
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for spec ific revenues that are legally restricted 

to expenditure for particu lar purposes. 
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MIO-EAST COMMISS ION 
CombinIng St>tem~nt of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance, 

Spui.ol Revenu e Fun d 

Revenue" 
Froend aw.rds 

St.!e awards 
toc..lm.tch 

Other Io<:al rrvenu~ 
i'rogram income 
)nte~st ln come 

Total Revenu es 

Expenditures 
PHsonn el 
Partlcip.nt w<1ges and fringes 
Travel 

Concf1lctual services 
Capltalo ud.y 
Other direct .rpenses 
Indi,"ct costs 

Total Expend itu res 

Revenues ovrr(under) npendlrur" 

Othrr Finane i ng Sour<;es (Uses) 
Tr:ansfe rs (to) from Speo;ll Projuts 
rr:ansfe r (to) from Spen.1 Projects 
rr~n,fe r of loc~1 matching funds 

Total oth .. financing sources (",es) 

Ch~nge on fund balance 

Fund 8~bnces: 

BegonningofYeu 

End ofY.ar 

For the Yen Ended lune 30, 21)13 

Workforce 
Oevelopment Eco nomic 

Aging Region 0 Deve lopment 

1.602.017 2.6'l2.069 76.939 
1.534,2 55 38,708 

264.393 
2.195 63,691 

3,402,<)20 2,692,069 179,338 

3G6.961 611.985 105.987 
Z49.HO 

48.887 92.764 11.485 
V'1S.lM 1.254.606 34.01l 

3,997 
162.236 152.610 22,597 
155,539 330.n4 53,232 

3.472.884 2.692.069 227.312 

(69,964) (47,974) 

69.964 47.974 
69,964 47,974 
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MID·tAST COMMISSION 
Comb,"u'iSUumo:>ntofReVi:nues. Exptnd'llJr~s .• ...:I Cha"i.sln fund 8,li"«_ AII,nll Pro&rlm. 

For d ... rUr Ended June 30, 20ll 

Agong flom •• nd A&i"a 
I'I'nnong Ind Communi!)' ~hn,~mem TIde III 

Adm,nosmlaon ClreSlod: Infor ...... uoa Elder 
T,:I. [II C;""nt Le~1 Ruchti Stmces Abuse 

ReW!n ..... 
Fedt'll,w,n» • 145,637 • 1.062.035 18.060 102.668 5.191 
SUu ..... rd.s ll.6S1 US1.HO 1.063 ",., m 
l.ouJ match 248.325 '" ~r loc.1 revenue '" 2.045 

To~1 ReVi:nuu 159.288 2.561.180 19.1H 13USS 2.045 6.813 

ex""l>IlllU 'U: 
Personnel 83.593 69.413 &H 
T",,_.I 18.471 8.238 m 
Cont ... erual serv'ces n.8SS 2561.180 26.Z30 
up,!,louday 
Otller dlreaupenses 43,54 2 19,123 11.818 2.045 5,412 
Ind(rectcostS 41.889 35.966 '" TOQI Expendit\>res 20l.3S0 2,561.780 19.1Zl 157785 2.045 6.813 

Revenu" over(underJ . xpendlwres (42.Q62) (23.627) 

Other Financing Sources (Use.) 
T ... nsf.r olloal matching funds 42.062 23.617 

TOQI other flnancincsourc" (uses) 42.062 23.621 

~nee In fund balartCt 

fund Eblanc •• 
~nn'ngorYear 

End ofreu.lun.lO • 
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MID-EAST COMMISSION' 
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OUlre",h 

25.369 S 
58,155 ,« 
84.968 

8&.941 

fU7Sl 
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Fim,ly 
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Sup!X?rt 
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2.927 

32.128 
14.561 

190.170 



OepUtmellt 
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IDSU",n« ". I'ro'!ct CRC{I.£A I~n~ lu~ 30. 2013 

S 1.602..077 

'.000 35.412 40.118 1.514.255 
2.148 26-4.193 

SO 2.195 
1.000 35.462 2.148 40.318 3.402.920 

4.512 2.811 306.961 
1.612 1.069 48.887 

26.081 25.857 2 .795.26~ 

1.110 3.997 
1.107 9.l81 2. 148 6.375 162.236 
2.069 3.016 155.5l9 
9.300 l5.462 2.148 40.118 3.472..884 

(2.300) (69.9641 

2.300 69_964 
2.loo 69.964 
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MID-EAST COMMISSION 
Aging Programs - Aging Planning and Administration Title III 

Schedule of Revenues. Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 
Variance 
Postive 

Budget 
Revenues 

Actual (Negative) 

Federal awards $ $ 145,637 $ 
State awards 13,651 
Local match 
Other local revenue 

Total revenues 159,288 159,288 

Expenditures 
Personnel 83,593 
Travel 18,471 
Contractual services 13,855 
Capital outlay 
Other di rect expenses 43,542 
Indirect costs 41,889 

Total expenditures 201 ,350 201,350 

Revenues over (under) 
expenditures (42,062) (42,062) 

Other Financing Source (Uses) 
Transfer of local matching funds 42,062 42,06 2 

Total other fina ncing sources (uses) 42,062 42,06 2 

Change in fund ba lance $ $ 

Fund Balances: 
Beginning of year 

End of year $ 

- 44 -



MID-EAST COMMISSION 
Aging Programs - Home and Community Care Block Grant 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Revenues 
Federal awards 
State awards 
Other local revenue 

Total revenues 

Expenditures 
Contractual services 

Total expenditures 

Revenues over (under) 
expenditures 

Other Financing Sou rce (Uses) 
Transfer of local matching funds 

Total other finanCing sources (uses) 

Change in fund balance 

Fund Balances: 
Beginning of year 

End of year 

Budget Actual 

$ $ 1,062,035 
1,25 1,420 

248,325 
2,561,780 2,561,780 

2,561,780 
2,561,780 2,561,780 

5,== = 

$=== 

- 45-

Variance 
Postive 

(Negative) 

$ 1,062,035 
1,251,420 

248,325 
2,561,780 

(2,561,780) 
(2,561,780) 

$,=== 



M!D-EAST COMMISSION 
Aging Programs - Legal 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Revenu es 
Federal awards 
State awards 
Other local revenue 

Total revenues 

Expenditures 
Other direct expenses 
Indirect costs 

Total expenditures 

Revenues over (under) 
expenditures 

Change in fund balance 

Fund Balances: 
Beginning of year 

End of year 

Budget Actual 

$ 18,060 
1,063 

19,123 19,12 3 

19,123 

19.123 19,123 

s=~ 

-4 6 -

Variance 
Postive 

(Negative) 

$ 



MID· EAST COMMISSION 
Aging Programs · Reach II 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance· Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 20 13 
Variance 
Postive 

Budget 
Revenues 

Actual (Negative) 

Federal awards S S 102,668 S 
State awards 31.390 
Orhf'f lOl':al rf'Vf'nllf' 100 

Total revenues 134,158 134.158 

Expenditures 
Personnel 69,473 
Travel 8,238 
Other direct expenses 17,878 
Indirect costs 35,966 
Contractual services 26,230 

Total expenditures 157,785 157,785 

Revenues over (under) 
expenditures (23.627) (23.627) 

Other FinanCing Source (Uses) 
Transfer of local matching funds 23.627 23.627 

Total other financing sources (uses) 23,627 23.627 

Change in fund balance S S 

Fund Balances: 
Beginning of year 

End of year S 
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MID-EAST COM MI SSJON 
Aging Programs - Aging Management Information Services 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Revenues 
Other local revenue 

Total revenues 

Expenditures 
Other direct expenses 

Total expenditu res 

Revenues over (under) 
expenditures 

Other Financing Source (Uses) 
Transfer of local matching funds 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Change in fund balance 

Fund Balances: 
Beginning of year 

End of year 

Budget Actual 

$ $ 2,045 
2,045 2,045 

2,045 
2,04$ 2,045 

$ ==~ 

-48-

Variance 
Postive 

{Negative) 

$ 2,045 
2,045 

2,045 

$=== 



MID-EAST COMMISSION 
Aging Programs - Title 111 Elder Abuse 

Schedule of Revenues. Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budgetand Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2013 
Variance 
Postive 

Budget 
Revenues 

Actual (Negative) 

Federal awards $ $ 5,791 $ 
State awards 341 
Local match 681 

Total revenues 6,813 6,813 

Expenditures 
Personnel 641 
Travel 373 
Other direct expenses S,432 
Ind irect costs 367 

Total expen ditu res 6,813 6,813 

Revenues over (under) 
expenditures 

Other Financing Source (Uses) 
Transfer ofloca! matching funds 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Change in fund balance $ $ 

Fund Balances: 
Beginning of year 

End of year $ 

-49-



MID -EAST COMMISSION 
Aging Programs - Ombudsman Program 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and 

Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Variance 
Postive 

Budget 
Revenues 

Actual (Negative) 

Federal awards $ $ 65,564 $ 
State awards 27,027 
Local revenue 10,288 10,288 

Total revenues 102,879 102,879 10,288 

Expenditures 
Pe rsonnel 53.464 
Travel 9,587 
Contractual services 1,020 
Capital outlay 
Other direct expenses 11,919 
Indirect costs 26,889 

Total expenditures 102,879 102,879 

Revenues over (under) 
expenditures 10,288 

Other Financing Source (Uses) 
Transfer oflocal matching funds 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Change in fund balance $ $ 10,288 

Fund Balances 
Beginning of year 

End of year $ 
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MID-EAST COMMISSION 
Aging Programs - HCCBG Martin and BeaufortCounties 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Acrual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Revenues 
Federal awards 
State awa rds 
Local revenue 

Total revenues 

Expenditu res 
Perso nnel 
Travel 
Contracrual services 
Capital outlay 
Other direct expenses 
Ind irect costs 

Total expend irures 

Revenues over (u nder) 
expendirures 

Other Financing Source (Uses) 
Transfe r of local match ing funds 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Budget 

s S 

2.107 

2,107 

Actual 

2.107 
2,1 07 

417 
339 
233 

949 
169 

2,107 

Variance 
Postive 

(Negative) 

$ 

Change in fund balance .$~~~ 

Fund Bala nces: 
Beginning of year 

End of year 

- 5 1 -



Revenues 

MID-EAST COMMISSION 
Aging Programs - MIPPA II 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Budget Actual 

Variance 
Postive 

(Negative) 

State awards 
Total rev!"nllf'S 

$--o-;;;c;-
6,400 

$ 6,400 $ ___ _ 

Expenditures 
Personnel 
Travel 
Contractual services 
Capital outlay 
Other direct expenses 
Indirect costs 

Total expenditures 

Revenues over (under) 
expenditures 

Change in fund balance 

Fund Balances 
Beginning of year 

End of year 

6,100 

3,000 

3,400 

6,400 6,400 

- 52-



Revenues 
State awards 

Total revenues 

Expenditures 
Personnel 
Travel 
Contractual services 
Capital outlay 

MID-EAST COMMISSION 
Aging Programs - AM Administration Support 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Budget Actual 

S $ 48,261 
48,261 48,261 

21.763 
2,370 
6.706 

Other d irect expenses 
Indirect costs 

6,809 
10,613 

Total expend itu res 

Revenues over (under) 
expenditures 

48,261 48,261 

Variance 
Postive 

(Negative) 

$ 

Change in fund balance 
- $~== 

Fund Balances: 
Beginning of year 

End of year $~~,;,. 
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MID-EAST COMMISSION 
Aging Programs - Title [[J-D Disease Prevention. Health Promotion, and Senior Center Outreach 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2013 

Revenues 
Federal awards 
Local Match 
State awards 

Total revenues 

Expenditures 
Contractual services 
Othe r direct expenses 

Total expenditures 

Revenues over (under) 
expenditures 

Other Financing Source (Uses) 
Transfer of local matching funds 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Change in fund balance 

Fund Balances: 
Beginning of year 

End of year 

Budget Actual 

$ $ 25,369 
R44 

58,755 
84,968 84,968 

86,943 

86,943 86,943 

[1,975) [1,975) 

1,975 1,975 
1,975 1,975 

-

-54-

Variance 
Postive 

(Negative) 

$ 

$ 



MID-EAST COMMISSION 
Aging Programs - HUD Housing and Home EquIty Counseling 

Schedule of Revenues, ExpendItures and 
Changes in Fund Balance· Budget and Actual 

Revenues 
State awards 
Other local 

Total revenues 

Expenditures 
Personnel 
Travel 
Contractual services 
Other direct expenses 
Indirect costs 

Tota l expenditures 

Revenues over (u nder) 
expenditures 

Change in fund balance 

Fund Balances: 
Beginn ing of year 

End of year 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Budget Actual 

s s 

375 

375 

$==:: 

$ ==~ 

- 55 -

$ 

Variance 
Postive 

(Negative) 

375 

375 



MID -EAST COMMISSION 
Aging Programs - Family Caregiver Support 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Revenues 
Federal awards 
Other local revenues 
State awards 

Total revenues 

Expenditures 
Personnel 
Travel 
Contractual services 
Capital outlay 
Other direct expenses 
Indirect costs 

Total expenditu res 

Revenues over (under) 
expenditures 

Other FinanCing Source (Uses) 
Transfer ofloral matching funds 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Change in fund balance 

Fund Balances 
Beginning of year 

End of year 

Budget Actual 

s $ 176,953 

13,217 
190,170 190,170 

70,267 
6,828 

43,559 
2,827 

32,128 
34,561 

190,170 190,170 

- 56 -

Variance 
Postive 

(Negative) 

$ 



M!D~EAST COMMISSION 
Aging Programs - Department of Insurance 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Revenues 
State awards 
Local match 

Total revenues 

Expenditures 
Personnel 
Travel 
Contractual services 
Other direct expenses 
Indirect costs 

Total expenditures 

Revenues over (under) 
expenditures 

Other Financing Sou rce (Uses) 
Transfer ofloca l matching funds 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

$ 

Budget Actual 

$ 7,000 

7,000 7,000 

4,512 
1,612 

1,107 
2,069 

9,300 9,300 

(2,300) (2,300) 

2,300 2,300 
2,300 2,300 

Vanance 
Postive 

(Negative) 

S 

Change in fund balance -$~~~ 

Fund Balances: 
Beginning of year 

End or year 
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MID-EAST COMMISSION 
Aging Programs - Project Care 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 
Variance 
Postive 

Revenues 
Budget Actual {Negative} 

Federal awards S S S 
State awards 35,41 2 
Other local revenue SO 
Local match 

Total revenues 35,462 35,462 

ExpendItures 
Personnel 
Travel 
Contractual services 26,081 
Capital outlay 
Other direct expenses 9,381 
Indirect costs 

Total expenditu res 35,462 35,462 

Revenues over (under) 
expenditures 

Other Financing Source (Uses) 
Transfer of local matching funds 

Total other fina ncing sources (uses) 

Change in fund balance S $ 

Fund Balances: 
Beginning afyear 

End of year S 

- 58-



MID-EAST COMMISSION 
Agmg Programs - Special PrOject 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Budget Actual 

Revenues 
Federal awards 
State awards 
Other local revenue 
Local match 

Total revenues 

ExpendItures 
Personnel 
Travel 
Conrractuai services 
Capital outlay 
Other direct expenses 
Indirect costs 

Total expenditures 

Revenues over (under) 
expenditures 

Other Financing Source (Uses) 
Transfer of local matching funds 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

$ s 

2,148 

2.148 2.148 

2,148 

2,148 2,148 

$ 

Variance 
Postive 

(Negative) 

Change in fund balance -$==~ 

Fund Balances: 
Beginning of year 

End of year $=~ 
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MID-EAST COMMISSION 
Aging Programs - CRC/LCA 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Revenues 
State revenues 

Total revenues 

Expenditures 
Personnel 
Travel 
Contractual services 
Other direct expenses 
Equipment 
Indirect costs 

Total expenditures 

Revenues over (under) 
expenditures 

$ 

Budget Actual 

$ 40,318 
40,318 40,318 

2,831 
1,069 

25,857 
6,375 
].,170 
3,016 

40,318 40,318 

Variance 
Postive 

(Negative) 

$ 

Change in fund balance - $=== 

Fund Balances: 
Beginning of year 

End of year 
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MID-EAST COMMISSION 
Aging Programs - Hurricane Irene 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Acrual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Revenues 
Local Match 
State awards 

TObl revenues 

Expenditures 
Personnel 
Travel 
Contractual services 
Other dIrect expenses 
Indirect COSts 

Total expenditures 

Revenues over (under) 
expenditures 

Change in fund balance 

Fund Balances: 
Beginning of year 

End of year 

Budget Actual 

s $ 

18,428 

18,428 

- 61 -

$ 

Variance 
Postive 

(Negative) 

18,428 

18,428 

$,~~1~8,;;,4~28~ 
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46.923 38.111 
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650.545 8l3.l36 
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MID-EAST COMMISSION 
Workforce Development Region Q - Administration - WIA 2010 

Schedule of Revenues, ExpendItures and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budgetand Actual 

For me Fiscal Year Ended June 3D, 2013 

Revenues 
Federal awards 
Local match 

Tolal n:venues 

Expenditures 
Administration: 

Personnel 
Travel 
Contractual services 
Capital outlay 
Other direct expenses 
Indirect costs 

Total expenditures (admin) 

Revenues over (under) 
expenditures 

Change in fund balance 

Fund Balances: 
Beginning of year 

End of year 

Budget 

277,321 

277,321 

'63-

Actual 

277,321 

277,321 

149,373 
17,513 
5,832 

30,420 
74,183 

277,321 

s==~ 

Variance 
Postive 

(Negative) 



MID-EAST COMMISSION 
Workforce Development Region Q - Adult - W IA 2020 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Ba lance - Budget and Actu al 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Revenues 
Federal awards 

Total revenues 

Expenditures 
Program: 

Personnel 
Participant wages and fringes 
Travel 
Contractual services 
Other direct expenses 
Indirect costs 

Total expenditures (program) 

Revenues over (under) 
expenditu res 

Change in fund balance 

Fund Balances: 
Beginning of year 

End of year 

Budget 

673,330 
673,330 

100.623 
38,947 
13,798 

440,654 
7,464 

71,844 
673,33 0 

$~=~ 

- 64-

Actual 

673,330 
673,330 

100,623 
38,947 
13,798 

440,654 
7,464 

71,844 
673,330 

Variance 
Postive 

(Negative) 



MID-EAST COMMISSION 
Workforce Development Region Q -MIS/Business Services 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Revenues 
Federal awards 

Total revenues 

Expenditures 
Program: 

Personnel 
Participant wages and fringes 
Travel 
Contractual services 
Other direct expenses 
lndirect COSts 

Total expenditures (program) 

Revenues over (under) 
expenditures 

Change in fund balance 

Fund Balances: 
Beginning of year 

End of year 

Budget 

40,000 
40,000 

8.934 

S,373 
300 

20,801 
4,592 

40,000 

$,~=~ 

-65 -

Actual 

40,000 
40,000 

8.934 

5,373 
300 

20,801 
4,592 

40,000 

$~=~ 

Variance 
Postive 

(Negative) 

$,= == 



MID-EAST COMMISSION 
Workforce Development Region Q . Energy Grant 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budgetand Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Revenues 
Federal awards 

Total revenues 

Expenditures 
Program: 

Personnel 
Participant wages and fringes 
Travel 
Contractual services 
Other direct expenses 
Indirect costs 

Total expenditures (program) 

Revenues over (under) 
expenditures 

Change in fund balance 

Fund Balances: 
Beginning of year 

End of year 

-66 -

Budget 

205,413 
205,413 

47.379 

772 
128,302 

5,725 
23,235 

205,413 

Actual 

205,413 
205,413 

47,379 

772 
128,302 

5,725 
23,235 

205,413 

Variance 
Postlve 

(Negative) 



MID-EAST COMMISSION 
Workforce Development Region Q - Dislocated Worker - WIA 2030 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Revenues 
Federal awards 

Total revenues 

Expenditures 
Program: 

Personnel 
Participant wages and fringes 
Travel 
Contractual services 
Other direct expenses 
! ndirect costs 

Total expenditures (program) 

Revenues over (under) 
expendi tures 

Change in fund balance 

Fund Balances: 
Beginning of year 

End of year 

- 67-

Budget 

650,545 
650,545 

123,776 
95,702 
38,043 

281,912 
46,923 
64,189 

650,545 

Actual 

650,545 
650,545 

123,776 
95,702 
38,043 

281,912 
46,923 
64,189 

650,545 

$ 

Variance 
Postive 

(Negative) 



MID -EAST COMMISSION 
Workforce Development Region Q . Youth - WIA 2040 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance· Budget and Actual 

Forthe Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Revenues 
Federal awards 

Total revenues 

Expenditures 
Program: 

Personnel 
Participant wages and fringes 
Travel 
Contractual services 
Capital outlay 
Other direct expenses 
Ind irect costs 

Total expenditures (program) 

Revenues over (under) 
expenditures 

Cha nge in fund balance 

Fund Balances· 
Beginning afyear 

End of year 

-68 -

Budget 

833,236 
833,236 

181,900 
114,681 

8,207 
397,606 

38,111 
92,731 

833,236 

Actual 

833,236 
833,236 

181,900 
114,681 

8,207 
397,606 

38,111 
92,731 

833,236 

Variance 
Postive 

(Negative) 



MID-EAST COMMISSION 
Workforce Development Region Q - Incentive - WIA 2050 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2013 

Revenues 
Federal awards 
Local match 

Total revenues 

Program: 
Personnel 
Participant wages and fri nges 
Travel 
Contractual services 
Capital outlay 
Other direct expenses 
Indirect costs 

Total expenditures 

Revenues over (under) 
expenditures 

Change in fund balance 

Fund Balances: 
Beginning of year 

End of year 

Budget Actual 

12.224 12,224 

12,224 12,224 

9,059 9,059 

3,166 3,166 

12,224 12,224 

$ ==~ 

- 69 -

Variance 
Postive 

(Neganve) 
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MID-EAST COMMISSION 
Comb,mng $Luement "fRevenues, Expenditures, and Changes!fl Fund Balances ·Econom,e Oe.·elopmeru Programs 

For the Year Ended lune 30, 2013 

Beaufort 
Econor.1iC County 

Development Humune NC CMW CUC 
AdmlnlmatiOn Irene Tommorrow RC ARRA 

R~venues 

Federal awards 63,000 • 13,939 • St<lte awards 22,64'1 16.os'1 
Other local revellue 8,689 1,247 7,161 

Total Revenues 63,000 45,277 16,059 1,247 7,161 

Ex~llditures, 

Personnel 56.894 10,104 8,904 "" 3,"" 
Travel 5,231 1,154 1,535 480 
Contractual serYltes . 91 32,285 
Capit<lloutlay 
Other direct expenses 14,'183 1,793 1.409 ?9 626 
IndireCt toSU 27,410 5.915 4.211 4?9 2.011 

Total Expendlt'.lres 105,000 51,2S1 J6,059 1.247 7,161 

ReVl'nues over(under) expenditures [42,000) [5,974} 

Other Flnan(lng Sources (Uses) 
Transfer (to) from special projects 
Transfer (to) from general fund 
Transfer of local matdl!flg funds 42,000 5,974 

Total other finanCIng sources (uses) 42,000 5,974 

Change In fund balanQ 

Fund Balances 
BeglnfllngofYear 

End of Year • • • • • 
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Waslungton 
COBC 

678 
678 

<I' .. 
" 169 

'" 



Beaufort GUC WashingtOn 
County St~rlLng EDA Beaufor.: 

ChocowinIty CC POint GUC )ilCk's County TouJ 
IDF EDA Pro!e<:t Westside c.~k CMW !ulle 3D, 2013 

S S S S 76,939 
38.108 

935 5,667 15,130 14,389 187 9,608 63.691 
935 5,667 15,130 14389 187 9.608 179.338 

557 3.047 8.291 7,812 187 5,101 10S.981 
75 76 1.164 un 535 11.48S 

311 311 311 311 34,011 

" 602 1.113 t.265 615 22.597 
239 1.631 4.251 3.810 3.046 51232 
9JS 5.667 15,130 14.389 187 9.608 Z27,3lZ 

(41.914] 

47,974 
47,974 

-71-



MID-EAST COMMISSION 
Economic Development Programs - Economic Development AdmInistration 

Schedule of Revenues. Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budgetand Acrual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended june 30. 2013 

Revenues 
Federal awards 

Total revenues 

Expendirures 
Personnel 
Travel 
Contractual services 
Other direct expenses 
IndIrect costs 

Total expenditures 

Revenues over (under) 
expenditures 

Other Fmancing Source (Uses) 
Transfer from ED special projects 
Transfer of local matching funds 

Total other finanCing sources (uses) 

Change in fund balance 

Fu nd Balances: 
Beginning of year 

End of year 

-72-

Budget 

63,000 
63.000 

56.894 
5.231 

482 
14.983 
27,410 

105,000 

(42,000) 

42.000 
42,000 

Actual 

63.000 
63,000 

56.894 
5.231 

482 
14.983 
27,410 

105.000 

(42,000) 

42.000 
42,000 

Variance 
Postive 

(Negative) 

$,~=~ 



MID· EAST COMM ISSION 
Economic Development Programs· Hurricane Irene 

Schedule of Revenues. Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

From Inception and For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Revenues 
Federal awards 
State award 
Other local revenue 

Total revenues 

Expenditures 
Personnel 
Travel 
Contractual services 
Other direct expenses 
Indirect costs 

Total expenditures 

Revenues over (under) 
expenditures 

Other Financing Source (Uses) 
Transfer (to) from 

Total otherfinancmg sources (uses) 

Change in fund balance 

Fund Balances: 
Beginning of year 

End of year 

S 

ProJect Prior Current 
Authorization Years Year 

13,939 $ , 13,939 
22,649 22.649 

8,689 B,689 
45,277 45,2 77 

10.104 10,104 
1,154 1.154 

32,285 32,285 
1.793 1.793 
5,915 5,915 

51.251 5l.251 

(5,974) (5,974) 

5,974 5,974 
5,974 5,974 

- 73 -

$ 

Total [0 

Date 

13.939 
22,649 
8.689 

45,277 

10,104 
1.154 

32,285 
1.793 
5,915 

5l.251 

(5,974) 

5,974 

Variance 
Postive 

(Neganve) 

$ 



MID-EAST COM MISSIO N 
Economic Development Programs - NC Tommorrow 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes In Fund Balance· Budget and Acrual 

From Inception and For the Fiscal Year Ended June 3D, 2013 
Variance 

Project Prior Current Total to Postive 
Authorization Years Year Date (Negative) 

Revenues 
State awards S 16,059 S S 16,059 S 16.059 S 
Other local revenue 

Total revenues 16,059 16,059 16,059 

Expenditures 
Personnel 8,904 8,904 8.904 
Travel 1.535 1,535 1.535 
Contractual services 
Other direct expenses 1.409 1.409 1.409 
Indirect costs 4.211 4.211 4.211 

Total expenditures 16,059 16,059 16,059 

Revenues over (under) 
expenditures 

Change In fund balance S S S S 

Fund Balances: 
Beginning of year 

End of year S 
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MID-EAST COMMISSION 
Economic Development Programs - Beaufort County CMW Rural Center 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2013 

Revenues 
Federal awards 
State awards 
Local match 

Total revenues 

Expenditures 
Personnel 
Travel 
Other direct expenses 
Indirect costs 

Total expenditures 

Revenues over (under) 
expenditures 

Other Financing Source (Uses) 
Transfer (to) from general fund 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Change in fund balance 

Fund Balances: 
Beginning of year 

End of year 

$ 

-75-

Budget 

1,247 
1,247 

689 

79 
479 

1.247 

$ 

Actual 

1.247 
1,247 

689 

79 
479 

1,247 

Variance 
Postive 

(Negative) 

$ 



MID·EAST COMMISSION 
Economic Development Programs - GUC ARM 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

From Inception and For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Revenues 
Other local revenue 

Total revenues 

Expenditu res 
Personnel 
Travel 
Other direct expenses 
Indirect costs 

Total expend itures 

Revenues over (under) 
expenditures 

Change in fund balance 

Fund Balances: 
Beginning of year 

End of year 

$ 

-76-

Current 
Budget Year 

7,161 $ 7,161 
7,161 7,161 

3,984 3,984 
480 480 
626 626 

2,071 2,071 
7,161 7,161 

Variance 
Postive 

(Negative) 

$ 



MID-EAST COMMISSION 
Economic Development Programs - Washington CDBG 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Revenues 
Federal awards 
State awards 
Local match 

Total revenues 

Expenditures 
Personnel 
Travel 
Other direct expenses 
Ind irect costs 

Total expenditures 

Revenues over (under) 
expenditures 

Other Financing Source (Uses) 
Transfer (to) from general fund 

Total other financing sources ( uses) 

Change in fund balance 

Fund Balances· 
Beginning of year 

End of year 

S 

Budget 

678 
678 

417 
44 
4B 

169 
678 

$.~=~ 

- 77 -

$ 

Actual 

678 
678 

417 
44 
48 

169 
678 

Variance 
Postive 

(Negative) 

S 



MID-EAST COMM ISSION 
Economic Development Programs - Chocowinity IDF 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Revenues 
Federal awards 
State awards 
Local match 

Total revenues 

ExpendItures 
Personnel 
Travel 
Other direct expenses 
Indirect costs 

Total expenditures 

Revenues over (under) 
expenditures 

Other Financing Source (Uses) 
Transfer (to) from general fund 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Change in fund balance 

Fund Balances: 
8eginningofyear 

End of year 

$ 

-7 8-

Budget 

935 
935 

557 
75 
64 

239 
935 

S 

Actual 

035 
935 

557 
75 
64 

239 
935 

Variance 
Postive 

(Negative) 

$ 

$,=== 



Revenues 

MlD·EAST COMMISSION 
Economic Development Programs - Beaufort County CC EDA 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Budget Actual 

Variance 
Postive 

(Negative) 

Federal awards 
State awards 
Local match 

s $ $ 

Total revenues 

Expenditures 
Personnel 
Travel 
Contractual seervices 
Other direct expenses 
Indirect costs 

Total expenditures 

Revenues over (under) 
expenditures 

Other Financing Source (Uses) 
Transfer (to) from general fund 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Change in fund balance 

Fund Balances 
Beginning of year 

End of year 
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5,667 
5,667 

3,047 
76 

311 
602 

1,631 

5,667 

5,667 
5,667 

3,047 
76 

311 
602 

1,631 
5,667 

$.~== 



MID· EAST COMMISSION 
Economic Development Programs· GUC Sterling Point 

Schedule of Revenues, ExpenditureS and 
Changes in Fund Balance· Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Revenues 
Federal awards 
State awards 
Local match 

Tota l revenues 

ExpendItures 
Personnel 
Travel 
Contractual services 
Other direct expenses 
Indirect costs 

Total expenditures 

Revenues over (under) 
expenditures 

Other Finandng Source (Uses) 
Transfer (to) from general fund 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Change in fund balance 

Fund Balances: 
Beginning of year 

S 

Budget 

15,130 
IS,130 

8.291 
1,164 

311 
1,113 
4,251 

15,130 

$==~ 

$ 

Actual 

15,130 
15.130 

8,291 
1,164 

311 
1,113 
4,251 

15,130 

$ 

End of year $==~ 
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Variance 
Postive 

(Negative) 



MID-EAST COMMISSION 
Economic Development Programs - CUC Westside 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Revenues 
Federal awards 
State awards 
Local match 

Total revenues 

Expenditures 
Personnel 
Travel 
Contractual services 
Other direct expenses 
Indirect costs 

Total expenditures 

Revenues over (under) 
expenditures 

Other Financing Source (Uses) 
Transfer (to) from general fund 

Total other finanCing sources (uses) 

Change in fund balance 

Fund Balances· 
Beginning of year 

End of yea r 

$ 

~ 8 1 ~ 

Budget 

14,389 
14,389 

7,812 
1,191 

311 
1,265 
3,810 

14,389 

$ 

Actual 

14,389 
14,389 

7,812 
1,191 

311 
1,265 
3,810 

14,389 

Variance 
Postive 

(Negative) 

$ 



MID-EAST COMMISSION 
Economic Development Programs - Washington EDA 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance· Budget and Actual 

For the Flscal Year Ended June 30. 2013 

Revenues 
Federal awards 
State awards 
Loc,,1 match 

Total revenues 

Expenditures 
Personnel 
Travel 
Other direct expenses 
Indirect costs 

Total expenditures 

Revenues over (under) 
expenditures 

Other Financing Source (Uses) 
Transfer (to) from general fund 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Change in fund balance 

Fund Balances: 
Beginning of year 

End of year 

Budget 

$ $ 

187 
187 

187 

187 

$=~ 
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Actual 

187 
187 

187 

187 

Variance 
Postive 

(Negative) 

$ 



MJD·EAST COMM ISSION 
Economic Development Programs · Beaufort County CMW 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes In Fund Balance · Budget and Actual 

From Inception and For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 
Variance 

Project Prior Current Total to Postive 
Authorization Years Year Date (Negative) 

Revenues 
Federal awards S S $ $ $ 
Other local revenue 24,416 14.808 9,608 24.416 

Total revenues 24,416 14,808 9,608 24,416 

Expenditures 
Personnel 14.496 9,395 5,101 14,496 
Travel 938 403 535 938 
Contractual services 311 311 311 
Other direct expenses 786 171 615 786 
Indirect costs 7,885 4,839 3,046 7,885 

Total expenditures 24,416 14,808 9,608 24,416 

Revenues over (under) 
expenditures 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Transfer to other ED funds 

Change in fund balance S $ S 

Fund Balances: 
Beginning of year 

End of year S 

- 83-



Auror-a 
PlannIng & 

Zomng 
Admlnl$traD(ln 

Revenues 
SUIte awards S 
Othe, 10C4I1 awards m 

Total Rewnu!s m 

ExpendItures: 
Personnel '" Tra"el 
Contractual servICes 
Qthu di,ea e.penses " Equipment 
Ind,rect CO$l$ " Tot.ol Exptnd ltures m 

Revenuu ovcr{unde') expenditures 

Other FinancingSOur«t: (Us«) 
Transfer (to) from otlltr funds 
Transfer ofloc.ll match,", funds 

Total other finan<:Ing $(lUT(es (uses) 

(hange in fIond b.lolance 

Fund &'I,nces 

Beeonnln,oIYeor 
EndofYnr 

M!O· EAST COMM1SSI0~ 
Plannon, PrOifams 

CombinlngSUI<omtn( 01 Rtvenuu. EKptndlture5..I.nd (!\lIngts In ,und &lan~es 
Forlne Yur endt<llune 30. 2013 

Aulander 
Plannn>g & 80cyde Maner 

ZonIng Beaufort MurfrHSboro Ahoskoe Poo 
Adminl$tnolion Coun~ PARTF PARTF W;lSnln~n 

S 
1.815 96,658 '''0 1.380 20.650 

1.815 96,658 >.SOO U8n 20.65n 

m 3B,n ... 5 2,091 '00 B.135 

3Sl >OS " 1,811 '" "" 36.571 4.097 1.199 1,793 

'OS 
m 19,624 1.1<;18 " 3,976 

\.875 96,658 1,S()Q U80 20.650 

S 

-8 4 -

Plannlng& 
lonlng 
AM.loe 

S 
5,333 
5,333 

1,781 

'" 
2.106 

1.139 
5,333 



P~nt~go Chocowinity 
P!.lnnlng 8. B"yd~/P~d<"Slrian Plann ing& Planning&. 

lon,ng PI~" lonong lonon, NCARC .. ~ F.rmVlII~ Admin "dmln '" 
'" 5,581 l.OOO 13,654 Inns 

'" 5,581 1.000 13.654 11.818 

'" 1.266 '" 1,293 7,132 

'" " 2S '" '" '" '" 2,191 '" 1,929 4,146 
5,6'10 

'" 1.022 ". 3,706 3,665 

'" 'sa, '.000 13,654 22.81S 

(5,000) 

'.000 
5,000 

.=== 
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MID-EAST COMMISSION 
Plannlnll Program, 

Comb'nlngSta~mentot Revenue$. Ex~ndltures, and CII~n~ In fund 8alances 
For the Yur Ended June 3D, Z013 

rouls 
Plannlnl Rural 
Specli.l Transport,lIion Ju~:;O. 

PTo!!Cts 'PO Planning 2013 

83,700 , 8.3,700 , 
16,714 99.625 15,694 304,657 
16,714 99,625 99.)94 388.)57 

8.189 53,036 56.023 186.366 

'" 7,084 6.248 15,806 
1.011 1.000 5,427 

3.206 11.059 13.257 89.666 

'" '" 6.275 
~,630 27.240 n.90Z 95.048 

16.714 99.625 104,625 398.588 

(5.231J (IO.BI) 

5.231 10,231 
5.231 10.231 

==.,~ 

8u4get 

83,700 
304.651 
388.357 

186,366 
15,806 
5,421 

89,666 
6,215 

95.048 
398,588 

(IO.Z3I) 

10.231 
10.231 

-86-

Van,noI 
POSIO .. t 

(Nentlwl 



Revenues 

MID-EAST COMMISSION 

State Technical Assistance 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and 

Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 3D, 2013 

Budget Actual 

Variance 

Postive 

(Negative) 

State awards 

Total revenues ' - =::-:- $ 
20,506 

20,506 $ _ _ _ _ _ 

Expenditures 

Other direct expenses 
Indirect costs 

Total expenditures 

Revenues over( under) expenditures 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Transfer (to) other funds 

Transfer (to) other funds 

Transfer (to) Special Project Planning 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Change in fund balance 

Fund Balances: 

Beginning of year 

End of year 

20,506 

20,506 20,506 

[20,506) [20,506) 

[20,506) (20.506) 
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MID-EAST COMMISSION 
Mid-East Intermediary Re-Lending Program Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

From Inception and For the Fiscal Year Ended June 3D, 2013 

Project Pnor Current 
Authorization Years Year 

Revenues 
Interest 7,633 65,296 462 
Program income 387,984 299,927 
Other local revenue 63 79,796 

Total revenues 395.680 445.019 462 

Expenditures 
Personnel 8.82 5 
Travel 32 32 
Contractual services 40,27$ 40,275 
Other direct e~penses 443.416 372.087 71,329 

PrinCipal 247.615 20,664 226,951 
Interest 7.843 4,806 3,037 

Indirect costs 6.300 6.300 
Total expenditures 754.306 444.164 301,317 

Revenues over (under) 
expenditures (358,626) 855 POO,855] 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Loan proceeds 358,626 

Total other financing sources (uses) 358.626 

Change in fund balance I I 300,855 (J00,8SS) !i 

Fund Balances: 
8eginning of year 300,855 

End of year , 

-88-

Variance 
Total to PostlVe 

Date (N~ativel 

65,758 58,125 
299,927 (88,OS7) 
79,796 79,733 

445.481 49,801 

8,825 
32 

40,275 
443.416 
247,615 

7,843 
6,300 

745,481 8,825 

(300,000) 58,626 

300,000 (58,626} 
300,000 (58,626) 

I 



Revenues 
Interest 
Processing fees 
Other local revenue 
Program income 

Total revenues 

ExpendItures 
Personnel 
Travel 
Contractual services 
Other direct expenses 
Ind irect costs 

Total expenditures 

Revenues over (under) 
expenditures 

MID-EAST COMMISSION 
Mid-East Revolving Loan Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Cha nges in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Budget Actual 

24,1B2 24,182 

1,784 1,784 
335,995 36,391 
361,961 62,357 

6,495 6,495 
355 355 

355.111 
361,961 6,850 

55,507 

Change in fund balance $ 55.507 

Fund Balances: 
Beginning of year 215,056 

End of year $ 270,563 

- 89-

Variance 
Postive 

(Negative) 

(299,604) 
(299,604) 

355,111 
355,111 

55,507 

$ 55.$07 



MID-EAST COMMISSION 
RLF Sequester 

Schedule of Revenues. Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance· Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended Ju ne 3D, 2013 

Budget Actua l 
Revenues 

Interest income 
Total revenues 

Expenditu res 

Personnel 
Other di rect expenses 
Indirect costs 

Total expenditu res 

Change in fund balance 

Fund Balances: 
Beginn ingofyea r 

End afyear 

37 37 
37 37 

37 37 

37 37 

$ = = = 

- 90-

Variance 
Pastive 

(Nega tive) 

$,= == 



Revenues 
Interest 
Processing fees 
Other toca l revenue 
Program income 

Total revenues 

Expenditures 
Personnel 
Travel 
Contractual services 
Other direct expenses 
Indirect costs 

Tota] expenditures 

Revenues over (under) 
expenditures 

M1D·EAST COMMISSION 
Mid-East Revolving Loan Fund 

Service and Marketing 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and 

Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Budget Actual 

74,272 74,272 

74,272 74,272 

1,888 1,888 
63 63 

71,329 
227 22 7 
765 765 

74,272 2,943 

71,329 

Change in fund balance $ 71,329 

Fund Balances: 
Beginning of year 

End of year 

- 91 -

S 

Varia nce 
Postive 

(Negative) 

71,329 

71,329 

71,329 

71,329 



MID-EAST COMMISSION 
Inter Program Training 

Schedule of Revenues, ExpenditureS and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budgetand Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Revenues 
Federal awards 
Local revenues 

Total revenues 

Expenditures 
Personnel 
Other direct expenses 
Indirect costs 

Total expenditures 

Change in fund balance 

Fund Balances: 
Beginning of year 

Endofyear 

Budget Actual 

15,669 15,669 
15,669 1~,bb9 

15,669 15,669 

15,669 15,669 

$=~ 
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Variance 
Postive 

(Negative) 

s==~ 



MID-EAST COMM ISSION 
RC DTF Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditu res and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Revenues 
Local revenues 

Total revenues 

Expenditures 
Other direct expenses 

Total expenditures 

Change in fund balance 

Fund Ba lances: 
Beginning of year 

End of year 

Budget Actual 

1,889 1,889 
l,RR9 

1,889 1,889 
1.889 1.889 

-93 -

Variance 
Postive 

(Negative) 





PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

Enterpri se Funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated 
in a manner similar to private business enterprises - where the intent of the 

govern ing body is that the costs of providing goods and services to the general public 
on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or 
where the governing body has decided that periodic detennination of net income is 
appropriate for accountability purposes. 
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MID-EAST COMMISSION 
Combining Statement of Net POsition - Proprietary Fund 

Mid-East Development Corporation 
)Llne 30, 2013 

Belhaven 

Twin Senior 
Gables Center 

ASSETS 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash eQuivalents , 13,287 S 11,254 
Security deposits 4,226 
Escrow 1,758 
Reserve 13,046 
Accounts receivable 2,375 
Prepaid expenses 160 

Total current assets 32,477 13.629 

Capital assets: 
8uildmg 250,105 

",d 10,000 
Improvements 5,764 
Furniture 4,263 
Accumulated DepreCiation {130.17B} 

Total capital assets. net 139,954 

Total Assets 172"nt 13,629 

LIABILITI ES 
Current Iiabilloes: 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 56 
Security deposits 4,226 
Notes payable - current 7,685 

Total current liabilities 11,967 

Non-current liabilities 
Notes payable - non·current 

NC Housing 22,494 
FMHA 211,9 16 

Total non-current liabilities 234,410 

Totalliabihties 
246,377 

NET POSITION 
Net Invesonent in Capital Assets (102,141) 
Unrestricted 28.195 13,629 

Total Net Position , (73,946) S 13,629 
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Veranda 

, 662 
1,450 

367 
4,039 

160 
6,678 

357.373 
20,000 

3.165 
4,775 

(116,705] 
268,60B 

275,286 

3,479 
1.450 
5,4)8 

10,367 

83,006 
261.813 
344,819 

355.186 

(81.649) 
1.749 , (79,900) 



, 

• 

Dogwoods 

11,6+7 
9,600 

64,550 
B,457 
1.835 

96,OB9 

1.153,659 
&B,750 

10,547 
(551.593) 
681.363 

777,452 

6,737 
9,549 

10,915 
27,201 

978,469 
978,469 

1,005,670 

(30B,021) 
79,B03 

, 

(228,218) S 

Management & 
Operations 

146,615 , 

3.467 

150,082 

20,6BO 

(2O,6BOl 

150,OB2 

13,35B 

13,35B 

13,358 

136.724 

136,724 , 
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Total 

183,465 
15,276 

2,125 
B1.635 
14,299 
2,155 

298,955 

1.761.137 
9B,750 

B,929 
40,265 

(BI9,156) 
1.089,925 

1,388,880 

23,630 
15,225 
24,03B 
62,893 

105,500 
1.452,198 
1,557,698 

1,620,591 

(491,811) 
260.100 

(231,711) 



MID-EAST COMMISSION 
Comb'n'ngSuttm~nl or R~"enues. bpuses.~nd Owonges ,n Fund Nel PO,"Mn 

Propnetuy Fund 
For the Yen Endedlune 30. 21)13 

~Ihilven 

;~" Senior Man~gellW'n! & 

G.ble~ Crnlor Vennlh Dol!' oods O~ntoons ;~, 

OPERATING REVENUES: 
Rentll ,...:ome 21.255 , , 15.029 , 147.525 , 181.809 
OpenUOn and manigt'rMnt '" '" Olhrr local rtvenue '" 4.810 ." l.60<) 1.911 9.330 

loul opentlllg revenues 2l.SS6 4.810 15.728 149.926 L911 193.931 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
M'IUIgt'ment rdated 17.889 19.131 28.207 65.227 
Upendon 01 program nrvices 29.818 65.973 19.886 6LS13 I!J4l ZOJ.ZSZ 

Oepr«iation 6.515 9.277 32.HZ 411.204 
ConlriCtual services 14.488 11.644 30.378 56.510 

Toul opuadng expend'tures 68.710 65.91) 78.939 152.530 7.042 373.193 

Operat,ng income (loss) (47.1S4) (61.1631 (63.210! [2.(04) 15.m) (179.262) 

NON·OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES): 
Renul ilSslsunce r«elved 49.8ll 54.996 104.113 
Inttrrst subsid,es 'Ke,VflI 11.475 \2.663 24.n8 
Inttrts! income " .- " '" Contnbu!lons and loul support 
capIllI1 Contnbutlon 61.16) 61.163 
Inurtstexpense [ISSOO] [6.0 191 [16.6941 [38.213} 

lO1ll1 no~ntlng ",~nuts(npellSts) 45.815 61.163 61.554 [16.6031 151.929 

Clunge ,n net poS'tion (1.B9) (1.656) (19.207) (5.m) (27.B3) 

Nn pos,llOn. beginning [n.60?} 13.629 (78.2441 [2090111 \41.8SS [204378] 

Nn pos,tion. endinS [T.!.9461 S U.629 p9.900I S rU8.218j S 136.124 /231.71lj 
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MID-EAST COMMISSION 
Comblmng Statement of Cash flows 

Propnetary Fund 
For the Yur Ended lune 30, 2013 

~Ihaven 

TWin Senior M~n~gement& 

Gables Center Ver~nda Do","""" 01)trations Total 

Ca~ flows From Operaung AcnvIlles; 
Cash ReceIVed from Customers/others , 21.556 4,810 S 15,1ZS , 149,926 20,832 , 212,B52 
Cash Paid for Goods. Services..& Employees (6H34j (15,079) {69.438) (123.316] (1,042) (338.369) 

Net Cish PrOVided by (Used for) 
Operating AcnviUes (41,818) (10,269) (5l,110) 26S50 13.19{l (125.511) 

Cash flows from rionapltal 
Financing Activities: 

Rental issistance and interest subs 61,292 61,559 128,851 
Contributlons and local support 
Transfers In/(Out) 

Net Cash PrOVided by (Used for) 
NoncipLtJ l Financing ActlvltLes 61.292 61,559 12S.851 

Cash Flows from Capital and ~Iared 
Financing Acovmes 

Acquisltlon and ConstruCtIon of 
Capital Assets (1,644) (1,644) 

PnncipaJ Pall;! on Bond Matuntles and 
CapItal leases (114) (13,112) (12,181) (26.661) 

Disposalohsset .66 (60S) (142) 
Interest P~Id on 80nd\Note 

Matuntles and CapLtal Leases (15,500) (6,019) (16,694) (38,213) 
CapItal contnbutlons 61.163 61,163 

Net Ush PrOVIded (Used for) Capital 
and ~Iated Financing Acnvmes (17,452) 61,163 09.131) (29,483) {SS03) 

Cash Flows from InvesnngActivitles: 
Inte rest on Investments 23 I . " 128 

Net Increase (Decrease) In Cash and 
Cash EqUIvalents 1.985 (9,106) (5,868) (2.842) 13.790 (2,041) 

Cash and cash eqUIvalents, July 1 30,332 20,360 12.386 88,639 132.825 284,542 

Cash and ca~ equivalents, June 30 , 32,311 11.254 , 6,51S , 85,191 , 146,615 , 282,501 

Re<oncihation or Opera ting Inco me 
to Net Cash Provided by Ope",ting 
Activities: 

OpeTilting ACtlVltles 
Operanng Income (t.o~l , [41.154) S (61.163] S (63.21D) S {2,604j S (5,131] S (119,262} 

Adjustments to Ret"oncile Operating 
Income to Net Cash Provided 
Operating Ao;tivlties: 

DepTKLation 6,515 9,271 32.412 48,204 
Chang!S In Assets and Liabilltles; 

(Increase) DeCTl!iSt 
In Accounts Realvable (2,315) m 9.061 1,141 
In Pre~lds (8) (8) (152) (168) 

Increase (Decrease) 
tn ACto\Ints Payable & accrued liatlllitits (1,159) (6.131) 331 (2,926) 9,860 (625) 
In Customer DepoSits (72) (IOO) (635} (B07) 

Total Adjustments 5,276 (9.106) 9,500 29.154 18.921 53.145 

Net Cash PrOVIded by OperatIng ACtlVltJes , (41.878] S PO,269j S (53.710] S 26,550 , 13,190 , (125,Stn 
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MID-EAST COMMISSION 
Enterprise Fund· TWIN GABLES 

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures 
Budget and Actual- (Non·GAAP) 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2013 

Revenues: 
Operating Revenues 

Rental income 
Operation and management 
Other local reven ue 

Total operating revenues 

Nonoperating Revenues 
Assi sta nce I su bsid i es 
Interest on Investments 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures: 
Management Related 

Salaries and employee benefits 
Repairs and maintenance 
Operating expenses 

Total 

Operating and Program Services 
Salaries and employee benefits 
Repairs and maintenance 
Operating expenses 
Total 

Contractual Services 
Salaries a nd employee benfits 
Repairs and maintenance 
Operating expenses 
Total 

Budgetary Appropriations: 
CapItal Outlay 
Interest Paid 
Debt Principal 

Total 

Total Expenditures 

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 

Final 
Budget 

$ $ 

21,556 

6l,292 
23 

82,871 

17,889 

29,818 

14,488 

22,012 

84,207 

(1.336) 
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2013 

Acrual 

21,255 

301 
21,556 

61,292 
23 

82,871 

12,209 
5,680 

17,889 

14,484 
15,334 
29,818 

14,488 

14,488 

15,500 
774 

16,274 

78,469 

4,402 

Variance 
Positive 

(Negative) 

$ 

5,738 

S.7.lR 

5,738 



MID-EAST COMMISSION 
Enterprise Fund - TWIN GABLES 

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures 
Budget and Actual - (Non-GAAP) 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Final 

Other Financing Sources and (Uses): 
Budset 

Bond Proceeds 
Transfer to other funds 
r. d,,~r~r from other funds 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Revenues and Other Sources Over 
(Under) Expenses and Other Uses (1.336) 

Appropriated Fund Balance 1,336 

Revenues, Other Sources and Appropriated 
Fund Balance Over (Under) 
Expenditures and Other Uses S $ 

Reconciliation from Budgetary Bas is (Modifi ed Accrual) to Full Accr ual : 

2013 

Actual 

4,402 

4,402 

Revenues, Other Sources and Appropriated 
Fund Balance Over (Under) 
Expenditures and Other Uses S _---"4,"-40"'2~ 

Reconciling items: 
Capital Outlay 
Prindpai Payments 
Decrease in accrued vacation pay 
Othe r revenues from capital projects 
Interest form capital projects 
Increase in accrued OPES 
Change in accrued interest 
Expenditures in capital project 
Capital contributions - grant 
Depreciation 

Total reconCIling items 

Change in net posItion 

~99~ 

774 

(6,515) 
(5,741) 

S ~~(~1,.,3;;;39:b) 

Variance 
Positive 

(Negative) 

5,738 

(1,336) 

$ 4,402 



MID-EAST COMMISSION 
Enterpnse Fund - BELHAVEN SENIOR CENTER 

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures 
Budget and Actual - (Non-GAAP) 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2013 

2013 

Revenues: 
Operating Revenues 

Rental income 
Operation and management 
Other local revenue 

Total operating revenues 

NonoperatIng Revenues 
Assistance! subsidi es 
Interest on Investments 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures: 
Management Related 

Salaries and employee benefits 
Repairs and maintenance 
Operating expenses 

Total 

Operating and Program Services 
Salaries and employee benefits 
Repairs and mai ntenance 
Operating expenses 
Total 

Conlractual Services 
Salaries a nd employee benfits 
Repairs and main tenance 
Operating expenses 
Total 

Budgetary App ropriations: 
Capital Outlay 
Interest Paid 
Debt Pnncipal 

Total 

Total Expenditu res 

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 

$ 

- 100 -

Final 
Budget 

4.810 

61. 163 

65,973 

65,973 

6S,973 

Actual 

$ 

4,810 
4,810 

61,163 

65,973 

65,973 
65,973 

65,973 

$ 

Variance 
Positive 

(Negative) 



MID-EAST COMMISSION 
Enterprise Fund - BELHAVEN SENIOR CENTER 

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures 
Budget and Actual- (Non-GAAP) 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Other Fmancing Sources and (Uses)' 
Bond Proceeds 
Transfer to other funds 
Trdnsfer from other funds 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Revenues and Other Sources Over 
(Under) Expenses and Other Uses 

Appropriated Fund Balance 

Revenues, Other Sources and Appropriated 
Fund Balance Over (Under) 
Expenditures and Other Uses 

Final 
Budget 

2013 

Actual 

Reconciliation from Budgetary Bas is (Modified Accrual) to Full Accrual : 

Revenues, Other Sources and Appropriated 
Fund Balance Over (Under) 
Expenditures and Other Uses 

Reconci ling items: 
Capital Outlay 
Pri ncipal Payments 
Depreciation 

Total reconciling items 

Change in net position 

s __ _ 
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Variance 
Positive 

(NegatIVe) 



MID-EAST COMMISSION 
Enterprise Fund - VERANDA 

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures 
Budget and Actual- (Non-GAAP) 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Revenues: 
Operating Revenues 

Rental income 
Operation and management 
Other local revenue 

Total operating revenues 

Nonoperating Revenues 
Assistance I su bsid ies 
Interest on Investments 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures: 
Management Related 

Salaries and employee benefits 
Repairs and maintenance 
Operating expenses 

Total 

Operating and Program Services 
Salaries and employee benefits 
Repairs and maintenance 
Operating expenses 
Total 

Contractual Services 
Salaries and employee benfits 
Repairs and maintenance 
Operating expenses 
Total 

Budgetary Appropriations: 
Capital Outlay 
Interest Paid 
Debt Principal 

Total 

Total Expenditures 

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 

Final 
Budget 

S $ 

21,819 

67,559 
14 

89,392 

19,131 

38,886 

11,644 

19,731 

89,392 
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2013 

Actual 

15,029 

699 
15,728 

67,559 
I. 

83,301 

13,740 

5,391 
19,131 

21,813 
17,073 
38,886 

11,644 
11,644 

6,019 
13,712 
19,731 

89,392 

[6,091) 

Vanance 
Positive 

rNeganve) 

$ 

(6,091) 

[6,091) 

[6,091) 



MID-EAST COMMISSION 
Enterprise Fund - VERANDA 

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures 
Budget and Actual - (Non-GAAP) 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Final 
Budget 

Other Financmg Sources and (Uses): 
Bond Proceeds 
Transfer to other funds 
Transfer from othel rUllds 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Revenues and Other Sources Over 
(Under) Expenses and Other Uses 

Appropriated Fund Balance 

Revenues, Other Sources and Appropriated 
Fund Balance Over (Under) 
Expenditures and Other Uses $ $ 

2013 

Actual 

[6,091) 

(6,091) 

Reconci liation from Budgetary Basis (Modified Accrual) to Full Accrua l: 

Revenues, Other Sources and Appropriated 
Fund Balance Over (Under) 
Expenditures and Other Uses 

ReconCiling items: 
Capital Outlay 
Principal Payments 
Depredation 

Total reconciling items 

Change in net pOSition 
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$ __ (",6",,0,,91,,-) 

13,712 
(9,277) 
4,435 

$ ~""g(1~,6~S6~) 

Variance 
Positive 

(Negative) 

[6,091) 

$ (6,091) 



MID-EAST COMMISSION 
Enterprise Fund - DOGWOODS 

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures 
Budget and Actual - (Non-GAAP) 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Revenues: 
Operating Revenues 

Rental income 
Operation and management 
Othe r local revenue 

Total operating revenues 

Nonoperating Revenues 
Assista nce I subsidl es 
Interest on Investments 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures: 
Management Related 

Salaries and employee benefits 
Repairs and maintenance 
Operating expenses 

Total 

Operating and Program Services 
Salaries and employee benefits 
Repairs and maintenance 
Operating expenses 
Total 

Contractual Services 
Salaries and employee benfits 
Repairs and maintenance 
Operating expenses 
Total 

Budgeta ry Appropriations: 
Capital Outlay 
Interest Paid 
Debt Principal 

Total 

Total Expenditures 

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 

Final 
Budget 

S S 

149,926 

91 

150,017 

2,560 
25,647 

61,533 

30,378 

32,459 

150,017 
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2013 

Actual 

147,525 
792 

1,609 
149,926 

91 

150,017 

12,996 

15,211 
28,207 

13,521 
48,012 
61,533 

8,964 
21,414 
30,378 

16,694 
12,181 
28,875 

1>19,993 

1,024 

Variance 
Positive 

(Negative) 

$ 

[2,560) 

3,584 

1,024 

1,024 



MID-EAST COMM ISSION 
Enterprise Fund - DOGWOODS 

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures 
Budget and Actual - (Non-GAAP) 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Fmal 
Budget 

Other FinanclngSources and (Uses): 
Bond Proceeds 
Transfer to other funds 
Transfer from other funds 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Revenues and Other Sources Over 
(Under) Expenses and Other Uses 

Appropriated Fund Balance 

2013 

Actual 

1,024 

Variance 
Positive 

(Negative) 

1,024 

Revenues, Other Sources and Appropriated 
Fund Balance Over (Under) 
Expenditures and Other Uses s 1,02' $ =d,,~02;;'~ 

Reconciliation from Budgetary Basis (Modified Accrua l) to Full Accr ua l: 

Revenues, Other Sources and Appropriated 
Fund Balance Over (Under) 
Expenditures and Other Uses 

Reconciling items: 
Capital Outlay 
Pnncipal Payments 
Depreciation 

Total reconciling items 

Change in net position 
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$ __ '",0",2",'_ 

$ 

12,181 
(32,412) 
(20,231) 

(19,207) 



MID-EAST COMMISSION 
Enterprise Fund - MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS 

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures 
Budget and Acrual - (Non-GAAP) 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Revenues: 
Operating Revenues 

Rental income 
Operation ond monogement 
Other loca l revenue 

Total operati ng revenues 

Nonoperaong Reven ues 
Ass istance / su bsid ies 
Interest on Investments 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures: 
Management Related 

Salaries and employee benefits 
Repairs and maintenance 
Operating expenses 

Total 

Operatmg and Program Services 
Salaries and employee benefits 
Repairs and maintenance 
Operating expenses 
Total 

Contractual Services 
Salaries a nd employee benfits 
Repairs and maintenance 
Operating expenses 
Total 

Budgetary Appropriations: 
CapItal Outlay 
Interest Paid 
Debt Principal 

Total 

Total Expenditures 

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 

s 
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Final 
Budget 

1,91 1 

1.911 

7,042 

7,042 

(5.131) 

$ 

2013 

Actual 

1,911 
1.911 

1,911 

7,042 
7,042 

7,042 

(5,131) 

s 

Variance 
Positive 

(Negative) 



MID-EAST COMMISSION 
Enterprise Fund - MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS 

Schedule of Revenues and Expendltures 
Budget and Actual - (Non -GAAP) 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 20 13 

Other Financing Sources and (Uses): 
Bond Proceeds 
Transfer to other funds 
Transfer from other funds 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Revenues and Other Sources Over 
(Under) Expenses and Other Uses 

Appropriated Fund Balance 

Final 
Budget 

(5.lll) 

S,131 

2013 

Actual 

(5.1l1) 

Variance 
Posinve 

(Negative) 

(5.131) 

Revenues, Other Sources and Appropnated 
Fund Balance Over (Under) 
Expenditures and Other Uses $ (5.1l1) $ ~d;(5;;;.I~ll~) 

Reconci lia tion from Budgetary Bas is (Mod ified Accrual) to Full Accrual: 

Revenues, Other Sources and Appropriated 
Fund Balance Over (Under) 
Expenditures and Other Uses 

Reconcili ng items: 
Ca pital Outlay 
Principal Payments 
Depreciation 

Total reconciling Items 

Change in net position 

$ __ (",5",.1",l1,,-) 

$ ~d1(5;;;.1~31~) 
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ADDITIONAL SCHEDULES 





Mid-East Commission 

Schedule of Fringe Benefits 

Total Annual Salaries 

FICA 
LGERS Retirement 

Supplemental Reitirement 

Group Insurance 

Other Post Employment Benefits 

Holiday leave 

Annual Leave 

Sick Leave 

Workers Comp 

Unemployment Insurance 

Total Fringe Benefits 

Fringe Benefit Rate Calculation 

Total Fringe Benefits 

Total Annual Salaries 

Total Annual Salaries 

Total Fringe Benefits 

Total Personnel Cost 

$ 576,096 

$ 974,472 

- 10 8 -

2013 

FY Actual Cost 

$ 

$ 

S 
S 
$ 
$ 

S 
$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 
$ 

974,472 

89,931 
76,728 

34,170 

183,084 

56,850 
81,071 

28,220 
7,362 

18,680 

576,096 

59.12% 

974,472 

576,096 

$ 1,550,568 



Mid-East Commission 

Schedule Of Ind irect Costs 

Total Indirect Annual Salaries 

Total Indirect Fringe Benefits 

Professional Services 

Travel 

Occupancy costs 

Operating Expense 

Total Indirect Expenditures 

Total Personnel Costs 

Less Total Indirect Salaries 

less Total indirect Fringe Benefits 

Total Direct Salaries and Tota l Di rect Fringe Benef its 

Indirect Rate Calculat ion 

$ 
5 
$ 

1,550,568 
(229,4431 
(114,941) 

Total Indirect Expenditures = $ 795,537 
'T:-o"'''''''-;O'';r-.-, -' :-5a::'a::r::';.;:s::a::'n':;d~T::'0::":!:'::;0::;r:::.'::ct::::Fr::'; n-g-."'B"'.-n-."1;-"--- -'::5--,,':2':0':6,:;:' :::8':"'4 
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2013 

FY Actua l Cost 

$ 229,443 

$ 114,941 

$ 110,145 

$ 25,769 

$ 175,346 

$ 139,893 

$ 795,537 

S 1,206,184 

65.95% 



Sala ries Indirect Fringe Ocupancy Source 

Description Per Pa~roll Cost Cost Cost of Funds 

AGING 
Aging Planning & Admin Tille 111-1 51,80199 41,888.79 27,499.58 11.43241 USOHHS 
Elder Abuse 458.46 367.15 18310 7468 USOHHS 

Ombudsman Program 33,04439 2$,889.22 19,749.12 6,415.00 USDHHS 

Comm Resource Conn-Local Contact Agency 4,607.55 3,01625 2,362.63 802.11 USOHHS 

Health Promotions & Disease Prev 169.27 169,12 248.18 32.63 USDHHS 
AM Admin Suppon 13,178.90 10,612.58 8,584.39 2,321.81 OHHS 

Evidence Based Health PrOl'l'k)\ion HI-D 5.457.78 3,694.40 2}8528 1,076.89 USOHHS 

Project Care #2 41,406-33 35,965.97 27,705.91 8,635.75 USOHHS 

Caregivers Support 45,324.16 34,560.95 24,943.22 8,114.86 USDHHS 

Dept of Insurance-Lookout 3,02326 2,068.77 1,489.34 679.14 DEPT INS 
Planning 

Aulander P & Z Admin 450.83 365,00 271.21 96.32 lOCAl 

Geographic Information Systems 4,912.85 3,664.83 2,818.94 1.038.81 lOCAl 

Farmville Pedestrian Plan 422.30 283.68 207.65 78.48 lOCAL 

Farmville Bike Plan 926.76 737.83 708.77 195.94 lOCAl 

Ahoskie P & Z Admin 1,206.16 1,13903 58064 12462 lOCAl 

Ahoskie PARTF 57.76 80.78 42.04 8.24 lOCAl 

Aurora P & Z Admin 87.99 56.47 48.13 17.52 lOCAl 

Beaufort County P & Z Admin 23,269.14 19,624.29 14,490.63 4,726.15 lOCAl 

Bath P & Z Admin 308.02 265,87 179.81 56.64 lOCAL 

Chocowinity P & Z Admin 4,339.11 3,70621 2,669 .26 96664 lOCAL 

Bicycle Master Plan - Washington 5,159.06 3,976.24 2,97637 989.01 lOCAl 

Follow-Up fO( Closed Projects 4,596.32 4,807.49 3,910.56 311.06 lOCAL 

Murfreeslxlfo 1,395.47 1,198,06 702.17 289.96 lOCAL 

Rural Planning Organization 33,821.67 27,588.63 21,182.63 7,147.09 DOT 
Peanut Belt Ru ral Planning Organization 32,669.24 27,553.19 20,642.49 6,808.08 OOROCAL 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

Economic Development Admin 39,900.19 33,325.40 25.416.76 8,20685 OEPT of COM 
NCTomorrow 5,318.85 4,210.72 3,584 .57 1,19301 COBG 
Washington COBG Oak Ridge 267.39 169.02 149.82 4836 COBG 

Chocowinity Industrial Development Fund 368.88 238.73 187.90 64.07 lOCAL 

BCCC - Eoonomic Development 1,951.88 1,63129 1,095.20 423.67 lOCAL 

Greenville Utililies Commission Sterling Poinle 5,38164 4,250.87 3,096.29 1,001.07 lOCAL 

Greenville Utililies Commission Westside 4,771.89 3,81038 3,040 29 1,040.54 lOCAL 

Beaufort County Rural Center-CMW 2,856.97 3,045.71 2,243.53 504.22 RURAl. CENTER 
Beaufort CountyfCMW-CDBG 431.13 479,1 1 257.97 79.08 COBG 

Greenville Utilities Commission - ARRA 2,570.69 2,07 1.43 1,413.08 588 21 lOCAl 

OTHER MEC 
Revolving Loan Fund Servicing 1,210.10 764.92 678.03 218.86 DEPT clCOM 

INDIRECT 
Indirect Cost Pool Salaries 227,36362 114,940.65 49,062.32 INDIRECT 

WIA 
WIA Region Q Admin 88.14297 74,182. 53 54,576.75 19,145.19 USDOL 

WIA Region Q Title I Adult 60,92528 52,606.47 39,155.07 4,218.55 USOOL 

W1A Region a Title I Dislocated Worker 75,73960 64,188.11 47.498.26 6,492.57 USOOt 

WIA Region Q Youth 111,28035 92,730.66 69,48731 13,822.74 USOOt 

CAPlfA 5,53514 4,591.95 3,399.19 1,097.26 USDOL 

Hurricane Irene/NEG 9.25303 8,789.18 7,624.92 1,960.11 uSOOt 

State Energy Sector Partnership 19,10726 14,82294 11,268.13 3,739.95 USOOL 

TOTAL 974,471.63 620,190.32 576,095.87 175,346.47 
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Mid-East Commission 

Schedule of Fringe Benefits 

Total Annual Sa laries 

FICA 

lGERS Retirement 

Supplemental Reitiremen t 

Group Insurance 

Other Post Employment Benefits 

Holiday Leave 

Annual leave 

Sick Leave 

Workers Camp 

Unemployment Insurance 

Total Fringe Benefits 

Fringe Benefit Rate Calculation 

Total Fringe Benefits 

Total Annual Salaries 

Total Annual Salaries 

Total Fringe Benefits 

Total Personnel Cost 

$ 715,808 

$ 1,163,902 

- I 11 -

2014 

FY Actual Cost 

$ 1,163,902 

$ 103,999 

$ 87,712 

$ 37,218 

$ 244,860 

$ 16,848 

$ 76,568 

$ 76,191 

$ 41,035 

$ 7,800 

$ 23,577 

S 715,808 

61.50% 

$ 1,163,902 

$ 715,808 

S 1,879,710 



Mid-East Commission 

Schedu le Of Indirect Costs 

Total Indirect Annual Salaries 

Total Indirect Fringe Benefits 

Professional Services 

Travel 

Occupancy cost s 

Operating Expense 

Total Indirect Expenditures 

Total Personnel Costs 

Less Total Indi rect Salaries 

Less Total Indi rect Fringe Benefits 

Total Direct Salaries and Total Direct Fringe Benefits 

Indirect Rate Calculation 

$ 
$ 
$ 

Tota l Indirect Expenditures = S 
~T::O::ta"l -::o::-ir-e::-C'::-5"a7Ia"r'-ie:;:s"a;;'n:;d::T":o::':ta71 "O:':ir:::eC:::':::F::r:'in-g-e-::s::-e-n-efi", '-s--- $ 
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1,879,710 

(226,027) 

(139,008) 

892,825 

1,514,675 

2014 

FY Actual Cost 

$ 226,027 

$ 139,008 

$ 146,913 

$ 26,000 

$ 199,450 

$ 155,427 

$ 892,825 

$ 1,514,675 

58.94% 
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COMPLIANCE SECTION 





Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co., P.A. 
4024 Oleander Drive Suite 3 
Wilmington, North Carolina 28403 
Telephone (910) 791-4872 
Fax (910) 395-4872 

Report On Inte rnal Control Over Fina ncial Reporting Aud On Complia nce and Othe r 
Ma tters Based On An Audit or Financial Statements Perfo rmed In Accorda nce With 

Government Auditing Standards 

IndependcntAuditor's Report 

To the Board of Directors 
Mid-East Commission 
Washington, No rth Ca rolina 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the 
Uni ted States of Ame rica and the standards applicable to the financia l audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the 
accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Mid-East 
Commission, as of and for the yea r ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes to the 
financial statements. which collectively comprises the Mid-East Commission's basic 
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 24, 2013. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
In planning and performing our aud it of the financial statements, we cons idered Mid-East 
Commiss ion's internal control over financial reporting (in ternal control) to detennine the 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing 
our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the Mid-East Commission's internal control. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Commission's internal control over financial 
reporting. 

A deficie ncy in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not 
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent or detect and correct miss tatements on a timely basis. A material 
weakness is a deficiency. or a combination of deficiencies. in internal control. such tha t 
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial 
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basiS. A significant 
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 

Members 
American Institute ofCPAs - N.C. Association ofCPAs - A/CPA Division of Firms 
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Our consideration of the internal control was for limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficie ncies in internal control 
that mIght be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. GIven these limitations. during 
our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in in ternal control that we conSider to be 
material weaknesses. However. material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 
As part of obta ining reasonable assurance about whether Mid-East Commission's financial 
statements are free of material misstatement. we performed tests of its compliance with 
certaip provisions oflaws. regu lations, contracts. and grant agreements, noncompliance with 
which could have a direct and material effect on the determinatio n of financial statement 
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit, and accordi ngly, we do not exp ress such an opinion. The results of our 
tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
repo rted under Government Auditing Sta ndards. 

Purpose of chis Report 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opin ion on the effectiveness 
of the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Governmen t Auditing Standards in considering the entity's 
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not su itable fo r any 
other purpose. 

~~,~,~.~~ ..... c. .. P.A. . 

Thompson, Price, Scott. Adams & Co., P.A. 
WilmingcolJ, North Carolina 
October 24.2013 
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Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co., P.A. 
4024 Oleander Drive Suite 3 
Wilmington, North Carolina 28403 
Telephone (910) 791-4872 
Fax (910) 395-4872 

Report On Compliance For Each Major Federa l Program; Report on Inte rnal Control Over 
Compliance; In Accordance With OMS Circular A-133 and the State Single Audit 

Imple mentation Act 

To the Board of Directors 
Mid-East Commission 
Washington, North Carolina 

Independent Auditor's Report 

Report on Compliance (o r Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited Mid-East Commission's, compl iance with the types of compliance requirements 
described in the (O MB) Circula r A-B3 Compliance Supplement and the Audit Manual (or 
Governmenta l Auditors in North Caroli na issued by the Local Government Commission, that could 
have a direct and material effect on each of Mid-East Commission's major federal programs (or the 
yea r ended June 30, 2013. Mid-East Commission's major fede ral programs are identified in the 
summary of auditor's results section of the acco mpa nying schedule of find ings and questioned 
costs. 

Managem ent's Respons ib ility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, 
and grants applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditor's Respons ibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Mid-East Commission's major 
federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We 
conducted ou r audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Ayditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular 
A-133, Audi ts of Sta tes !.ocal Governments and Non-Profi t Organizations and the State Single 
Audit Implementation Act Those standards, OMB Circular A-133, and the State Single Audit 
Implementation Act require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that 
could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes 
examining. on a test basis, evidence about Mid-East Commission's compliance with those 
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the 
circumstances. 

Members 
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Opinion on Eac h i\'lajor Federal Program 

In our opinion, Mid-East Commission complied, in all material respects. with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major 
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2013. 

Re po rt on Inte rnal Co ntro l Over Complia nce 

Management of Mid-East Commission is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective 
internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In 
planning and performing our audit, we considered Mid-East Commission's internal control over 
compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major 
tederal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for 
the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and 
report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMS Circular A-133. but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. 
Accordingly. we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority's internal control 
over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance ex ists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their 
aSSigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies. in internal contro l over compliance, such 
that the re is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a fed eral program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. 
A significant defici ency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance. yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the 
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that mi ght be defiCiencies. significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not 
identify any deficiencies in internal control ove r compliance that we consider to be materia l 
weaknesses. However. materia l weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements 
ofOMB Circular A-I33. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Thompson, Price, Scott. Adams & Co., P.A. 
Wilmington, North Carolina 
October 24, 2013 
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Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co" P.A. 
4024 Oleander Drive Suite 3 
Wilmington, North Carolina 28403 
Telephone (910) 791-4872 
Fax (910) 395-4872 

Report On Compliance For Each Major State Program; Report on Internal Control Over 
Compliance; In Accordance With OMB Circular A-133 and the State Single Audit 

Implementation Act 

To the Board of Directors 
Mid-East Commission 
Washington, North Caro lina 

Independent Auditor's Report 

Report on Compliance fo r Each Major State Program 

We have audited Mid-East Commission's, compliance with the types of compliance requirements 
described in the (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement and the Audit Manual for 
Governmental Auditors in North Carolina issued by the Local Government Commission. that could 
have a direct and mate rial effect on each of Mid-East Commission's major State programs for the 
year ended June 30, 2013. Mid-East Commission's major State programs are identified in the 
summary of audito r's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned 
costs. 

Management's Responsibili ty 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations. contracts. 
and grants applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Mid-East Commission's major 
State programs based on our audi t of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We 
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Aud iting Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMS Circular 
A-133, Audits of Sta tes Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations and the State Single 
Audit Implementation Act. Those standards, OMB Circular A-133, and the State Single Audit 
Implementation Act require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that 
could have a direct and material effect on a majo r State program occurred. An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence about Mid-East Commission's compliance with those 
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the 
circumstances. 

Members 
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Opinion on Each Ma jor Federa l Program 

In our opinion, Mid-East Commission complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requ irements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major State 
programs for the year ended lune 30, 2013. 

Repo rt on Interna l Control Over Compliance 

Management of Mid-East Commission is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective 
internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In 
planning and performing our audit, we considered Mid4East Commission's internal control over 
compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major 
State program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the ci rcumstances for 
the purpose of expressing ou r opin ion on compliance for each major fede ral program and to test and 
report on internal control over compl iance in accordance with OMS Circular A-133, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. 
Accordingly, we do not express an op inion on the effectiveness of the Authority's internal control 
over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a contro l over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their 
aSSigned fun ctions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such 
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requ irement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. 
A signifi cant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our conside ration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the 
first paragraph or this section and was not designed to identify all defiCiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or materia l weaknesses. We did not 
identify any defiCiencies in internal contro l over comp li ance that we consider to be material 
weaknesses. However, materia l weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control ove r compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requi rements 
of OMB Circular A-l33. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co., P.A. 
Wilmington, North Carolina 
October 14, 1013 

~ I I 9 ~ 



Mid-East Commission 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2013 

Section I. Summary of Auditor's Results 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditor's report Issued Unqualified 

Internal control over financial reporting : 

Material weakness(es) identified? 

Significant Deficiency(s) identified 
that are not considered to be 
materia! weaknesses 

Noncompliance material to financial 
statements noted 

Federal Awards 

Internal control over major federal programs· 

• Material weakness(es) identified? 

• Significant DeflCiency(s) identified 
that are not considered to be 
material weaknesses 

~no 

_yes 

---X..no 

---X..nonereported 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major federal programs: Unqualified 

Any audit findings disclosed that are 
required to be reported in accordance 
With SecIlon S10(a) of Circular A-133 

Identification of major federal programs: 

CFDA Numbers Names of Federal Program or Cluster 

---X..no 

93.044 
93045 
17.258 
17.259 
17.278 
11.307 

Special Programs for the Aging - Title III B 
Special Programs for the Aging - Title III C 
WIA Adult Programs 
WIA Youth Programs 
WIA Dislocated Workers 
Revolving Loan Fund 
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Mid-East Commission 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish 
between Type A and Type B Programs 

Audltee qualified as low-risk. audltee? 

Stale Awards 

Internal control over major state progra ms· 

Material weak.ness(es) identified? 

Significant Deficiency(s) identified 
that are not considered to be 
material weaknesses 

$ 300000 

--yes --.X...none reported 

--yes ......Lnone reported 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major state programs· Unqualified. 

Any audit findings disclosed that are 
requ ired to be reported in accordance 
with State Single Audit Implementation 
Act 

Identification of major state programs· 

Name of State Program or Cluster 

In Home Services 
Special Programs for the Aging - Title til B 
Special Programs for the Aging - Title til C 

--yes 

The Title 1!l8 and IIiC Programs are a State match on federal programs 
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None reported 

None reported 

None reported 

MId-East Commission 
Schedule of FIndings and Questioned Costs 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Section 11 - Financial Statement Findings 

Section III - Federa l Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

Section IV - State Award Findings and Questioned Costs 
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None reported 

None reported. 

None reported 

Mid-East Commission 
Corrective Action Plan 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Sec tion II - Financia l Statement Findings 

Section III - Federal Award Find ings and Questioned Costs 

Section IV - State Award Findings and Questioned Costs 
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SCIlEOULE OF EXP ENDITURES OF fEDERAL AN DSfAH AWA RDS 

ForTh~ Fi«al Year Ended lun. 30, 2013 
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Prog .. m T I~e 

reder.1 Programs 
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Diuct P ro~ .. m 
Ru .. 1 Rentill Assista n"" Payments/MEDCI 

In ' . res'subsidie< 
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USDA Suppleme nt 
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Special Pr"wa ms for lb~ A~in~ - Titl~ II I B 
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I.e~al ~rvic.s 

""ess 

Sp«,.1 PrOlCr.oms for theAginR - Tide lll C 
ConjU.J(:oIt~ Nutrition 
Ho me Oe/i"".-d ~ra.I. 
Pla n ninl': and Adm in,,!r.!i on 

Sp«I. 1 ProJi:r.lms for the A.o;ln~ 
Ti U. VII· B - Elder Abuse 
liUe VII· E - Ombudsm.n PfOJ:r.m 
Pre .. e.""" Health 
Disast.r AMistance 
ProjeaCare 
" mlly Car"l':iver Support 
T"I. 111 -£ Pla n nin~ .nd AdminLStration 
Options Cou nseli"l': 
~ I PPA Mffiic;l re ElIroIlmenl AMisa nce P<OI\rom 

~"' CRC/ LCA 

p~ through Stille Dept ofl n,u ... nce 
SHIIP 

Total U. S, HealtIL an d It uman S<e rvl<eS 

us. Oept of Commerce 
Olrert Program 

Economic ~.Iopmen! Adm lnistr.lIlion -Re""IVlng LNn Fund 
Economic ~elopmen! Admin istration-Plan ning Pro)1;f.m 

To tal U. S. Oept of Co mmerce 
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F..:Ieral 
CFDA 

Nu mber 

10,427 
10,427 

10.S70 

93 044 
n 044 
93.044 
93.044 
93044 

93 04$ 
93 .04$ 
93 .045 

93.041 
93,042 
93 ,043 
93,048 
93.051 
93.052 
93.052 
93.517 
93518 
93.667 
93.791 

93 048 

11307 
l U02 

F..:Ier~1 

Dire« .nd 
PassThro u ~h 

Ex peDditur.s 

H.ns 
104.713 
12S.8S1 

6 3.028 

1'H,S79 

71.202 
140.884 
49.SiJ 
18,060 

193.099 
472.758 

lZl,731 
91 .974 
61 .703 

5,79 1 
11.763 
23 ,961 

134.061 
176.284 
18,107 

4,539 
10,67Z 
79,744 
31,507 

498.429 

7.000 

1.353,595 

436,059 
99,568 

535 646 

'"" E<pond,tures 

1.902 
8,287 
2.9 13 
1.062 

11.35 9 
27523 

13.043 
5.410 
3.381 

21.834 

H ' 
on 

1.409 

11,8136 

'" 

17.598 

66955 



Mid-E.", Comm,S«On 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF H DERAL ANO STATE AWAR DS 

For The Fi,,~1 Yo~r Ended Juno 30, 2(113 

OOL-W"rl<forc~ I eves,mo" Ac , 
WI" Adul[ 

Youth 
Diil<><u.d Worker 

OOL Employmrnt Tr.o,n'lIj! Admini.u-~tlon - ARRA 
Com ~r~liv. C"m'" WO<br$ T,,;n;nl"'K.m ... </ll;~ G..-owdI Eme'li"R I.d 

Totol U. S. D~ptof LaM r 

u.s. Dept ofT"m,polUt,on 
hssed through NC Dept of Tr~ ns\lOrtotion 

RIlra l T "'Jl5i>Ortation Plann mg 

Tot.1 Fedrr~1 A"lSQ.nC~ 

-1 25-

l7.lsa 
17_259 
I7UB 

17.275 

675,966 
907.687 
784,762 

l.368.415 

225.000 

2.593,415 

~2.4S6 

4,756.991 



Mod·~ Comm,...,.. 
SCHWULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FW[RALANDST,\TEAW,\ROS 

ForTht F'scal ye .... Endtd Ju.elO.20U 

SUle PrOjl.nms 

Department of '\dm'nlst~lIon [OSBIolI 

DfP!rtn,enlolHnlth and Human Services 
MA Adm'n~lIon 

",= 
F"ftsProwam 
Home ~'nred meals 
la·HomeSerY>tes 
la·Home Services~nr 1oI.td1 
Om"""",", 
OmbudslMD {CIolPI 
Senior Center Deyelopment 
Project care l~ 
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'I' 

'" '" '" '" '" '" '" '" '" '" 

20.$06 

48.262 
112.604 

2.148 
196.805 
635.127 
lBl.968 

19.202 
8.510 

58.759 
26.597 

1.289.9B2 

1.310.488 

1.311443 



M,d·Eu, C""""'$$1(In 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF nDERAt ANDSTATE AIVAR.DS 

FocTh~ FiSUI y~., •• de<! June )0, 2013 

HOles 10 the Schedule 0( Exp.ndlrur~ of Fed.~; .nd SQU Awards 
I Basis 0( Prt$on=n . Th~ ;occomp.n)'ln, s<hedule 0( •• ptfldlturH of Ftdenl ,nd Sate awards ,ndlldt$ ch~ ftde~ 

.nd SCKe IVI"' ;IeO"''Y of MId·Ea$I: CommISSion and IS p~ated On che mochfled Keru.1 basIS of accounn"i The 
,"for~lO. in ch.sscMdulelS p(.~nted ,m I(co,~a"u ""Ill ctM, rtqu,,,,,,,,mts of 01018 ("cub, A·1l3. "lid,,, ti{Smta. 
/..ocol ~rnm£ll~ alit! NOII·Profi' OrgamzoOOllS ;ood til. Sate S'.s'o AIId" Imple ..... nllltIQa An. Th .... for .. ",me 
amount5 presented In ch,s schedule ""'y d,ff.r from ImOnts p<esemtd II\, or u§ed la Itot pr..p«r:ltloo 0( Ito. basI< 

finane .. 1 SUtemtnS. 

1. 5ubr«'p,Uts . Of me Fe<!enoI and State expend,ture. preseftted 'n !he scMdul •• Mld·East CommISsion prov,de<! 

ftd.",land SUtt awards to SUb'K'pionts ;os follo_: 

USOA Supplement 
WIA Adult 
WIA Youth 

~rovamTi!!. 

OOLMI.1Vo CumpCr~n Il:Wrk" T .. i"in~ Plmn,'1'I,)(1) C'O"'" E",. , 
WIA OlSloc.t..! Worker 
Pr .... nti". Kulch 
Access SHvIces 
In · home Sel"'ices 
Le~1 Setv,c~ 

Con~te Nlllnlloo 
tio,... Ool!'.'e,.d Mut. 
PrOl«l Car. 

S'"' CRt/LeA 
AcclOSS 
F.M Pl'OW"m 
Home de.f., •• rtd ..... aIl: 
In·tio_ .sel""Cf'$ 
SeniOr ~ter OtwIopmenl 
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CFOA 
Num~r 

10.570 
17.258 
I12Sq 
17 27~ 
J7 278 
Q)043 
Q)044 
93044 
910H 
Q104S 
91MS 
'HO~I 
93667 
91791 

'" '" 'I' 'I' 
'" 

Fedoral 

63.028 
675.'!l66 
907,687 
225.000 
784,762 

?3.961 
193.099 
140,884 

18,060 
221.7)1 
91.974 

134,Ot.l 
79,744 
31.507 

)591404 

1.409 
IUS9 
8,287 
1,062 

1l.043 
S.4H! 

2,278 

112J>04 
2,148 

196.805 
635,127 

58.759 

1 G4lI.291 


